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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TOTHE MEMBERS OF
DARJEELING ORGANIC TEA ESTATES PVT LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of
Darjeeling Organie Tea Estates Private Limited (“the Company™), which comprises
the Balince Sheet as at March 31, 2020, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statemenl of
Changes in Equity for the vear then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information,

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, except for the effects of the matter deseribed in the Basis for Qualilied
Opinion section of our report, the aforesaid financial statements give the information
required by the Companies Act 2013 in the manner so required and give a true and
fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India. of
the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31st, 2020 and its loss, changes in
equity and its cash flows for the year ended an that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

4) The company has defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings to the
banks & financial institutions. Details of Default with Overdue Installments
and overdue interest amounting to Rs.54.90 crores have been reported in
Note No.22. of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statement as on 31" March
2020, The Cash Credit & Term Loan exposure in UCO bank is NPA since June
2019 & Allahabad Bank Cash Credit includes interest payable and overdue
amounting to Rs.1.34 crores as disclesed in Note No. 20.

b) The Company has defaulted in Statutory Does and Liabilities which have been
reported in point ne. vii of Annexure A to this report. The GST Returns and
TDS Returns for the part of the FY 2019-20 has not been filed by the
Company, GST RCM Liability as well as inpul availing has been taken on
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accrual basis which in our opinion is not in compliance to GST law and was
Rs.0.29 crores CGST, Rs.0.24 crores SGST and Rs.0.03 crores |GST. To that
extent the GST Hability has been understated. (refer point no. vii of Annexure
A to this report)

The SFT Return was not filed as the due date is extended upto 30.11.2020 and
hence it was not produced. The resultant liability due to non-filing of the
aforesaid returns have nob been determined & provided for by the
Management as on 31-03-2020. S0 to that extent, the current liabilities and
loss are understated.

Balance Confirmation from Trade Creditors, Trade Receivables, Loans and
Advances given and Deposits as on 31-03-2020 as well as regular ledeor
reconciliation for transactions during the current financial vear of Vendors
and Customers has not been provided for our verification. The company has
sent request letters for balance confirmations to various parties, but none of
them has confirmed the balances.

The Company did not provide unpaid leave encashment as per the actuaral
valuation as recommended in Ind AS 19 in the Standalone Ind As Fina neial
Statements as on $1.05.2020. However, as stated by the Management to us
the Company has a poliey as per which at the end of the financial vear the
wulstanding leave is fully paid to employees on cash basis and at the end of the
veara sum ol Rs. 27.91 Lacs was estimated by the Company as outstanding,

Ot of the total sales revenue of Rs. 109.55 crotes during the eurrent financial
vear , the sales to related party customers is Rs.108.38 crores including sales
to Bhumyu Private Limited Rs.99.56 erores(out of which Rs.50.85 crores have
been provided for as doubtful debt in the vear of sale itsell). Refer Note 42(8).
To the extent of provision made against the current year revenue, the
reafisability is uncertain and having its impact on current year’s result.
Moreover, the prior Board Resolution and prior resolution of the Company in
General Meeting approving the aforesaid related party transactions as
required in See 188 of the Companies Act 2013 and rule 15 of The Comparies
(Meeting of Board and its Powers Rules . 2014) has not been provided to us.
Ratification within the specified time limit of three months is also not made
available.

Out of the total gross trade receivable of Rs.98.48 crores . the Company has
provisioned for doubtful debts amounting to Rs.95.74 crores during the vear
which includes related partv debts amounting to Rs.67.49 crores, Refer Note
No. 42(B). Documentation -in support Legal action for enforceahility of
collection and follow up of aforesaid debts prior to provisioning the same was
nat made available for our verification.

Compliance of Sec 188 of the Companies Act relating to such Provision for
Noubtful Debts of related parties, the specific resolution of the Board
approving the said provisioning was passed on 23.10.2020.

g) In compliance of Section 138(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 13

of the Companies (Aceounts) Rules, 2014, the company was subject to
internal audit. The enterprise wide Internal Audit in compliance of aforesaid
section could not be made available for our verifieation,
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h) The Other Current Assets includes an unmoved balance in Input VAT
Aceount amounting te Rs. 0.72 crores for which no details could be made
available to us. So in our opinion, this should have been written off and to
that extent the current assets have been overstated and loss has been
understated.

1) The Company has taken loan from the Employee Gratuity Fund UBI Account
amounting to Rs. 0.35 crores during the current financial vear. The Employee
Graluity Fund being an irrevocable trust, it is a violation of the Trust rules if
the Company being employer takes back maney from irrevocable trust.
However the repayment has been made by the Company after the Balance
Sheet date.

We conducted our audit in accordance with: the Standards on Auditing [SAs)
specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, Our responsibilities
ader those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities forthe
Andit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Aecountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant Lo our
audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and we have fulfilled our ather ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the 1CAl's Code of Lithics, We believe thal the audit evidence we
have ohtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified
G{rimion,

tnformation other than the standalone Ind AS financial statements and
auditors’ report thereon

The Company’s Management & Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation
ol the other information, The other information comprises the information ineluded
in the Company’s Annual Report, but does not include the standalone Ind AS
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Information inchuded in
the Anmml Report is expected to be made available to us after the date of the
Auditois’ Report.

Onr opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In
connection with our andit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information identified above when it hecomes
available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
eonsistent with the standalone Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge
obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears o be materinlly
misstated.

When we read the Other Information, if, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information therein, we are reguired to eommunicate the
mintter 1o those charged with governance and take necessary actions, as applicable
under the applicable laws and regulations.
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Managements ‘Responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS financial
stalements

The Company's Management &Board of Directors are responsible for the matiers
stated in section 1349 (5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalane
Ind AS Tinaneial statements that give a troe and fair view of the financial position,
Mnancial performance cash flows & Changes in Eguity of the Company in accordince
with the accounting principles generally accopted in India, including the Indian
dceounting. standards(Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Aet. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
aceordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies ;making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent: and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively {or ensuring the
dectraey and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and
Labr view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone Ind AS financial statements, management & Board of
Directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. disclosing. as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern hasis of aceounting unless management either intends to liguidate the
Company o to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to du so. The
Management & Board of Directors are alsa résponsible for overseemg the Company's
financial reporting process,

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the audit of the Standalone Ind AS
financial statemenis

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone Ind
\S Tinancial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due
to frewd or error, and to issue an auditor's yeport that includes our apimion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audil
conducted in accordance with SAs will alwivs detect a material misstatement when it
exksts, Misstatements can arise from Fraud or error and are considered material i1,
iulisideally or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
seonomic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone Ind AS financial
statements,

As part of an audit o aecordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professiomal skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= ledentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone [nd AS
linancial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion, The risk of not detecting o
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud mav involve collusion, forgery. intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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lsest of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our
auit;

(B} In eur opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by
the Company so far as itappears from our examination of those books;

(¢} The Standalone balance sheet, the Standalone statement of Profit and Loss
(Including Other Comprehensive Ineome), the Standalone Changes in Equity

.
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& standalone statement of the cash flows dealt with by this report are in
apreement with the books of account;

() Exeept for the matters stated in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, in
aut apinion, the aforesaid standalone Tnd AS financial statements comply wilh
the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act, read with rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 , to the extent applicable for the Company.

(1 On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
March 31, 2020, taken on record by the board of directars, none of the
directors except Mr. Sanjay Prakash Bansal and Mr. Hrithik Bansal is
disqualified as on March 31, 2020 from being appointed as a director in Lermns
of Section 164 (2) of the Act. We have been informed that the disqualification
of the above directors were due to non-compliance in some other companies
because of non submission of required documents, other than the auditee
company, where they have directorship.

(D)With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference
to standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure ‘B’ to
this report.

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 6f the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our

opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
LIs]

a4, Regarding detailed reporting upon the status of the pending litigation by and
against the company which would impact in its Standalone Ind AS Financial
Qtatements we refer Note No. 34A & Accounting Policy point no. 2.1 of the
attached financial statement.

b. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses; and

e. The Reporting point on whether there has been delay in transferring amounts,
required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the
Company is not applicable based on information and explanations provided to us,

For & On Behalf of

N. CHATTERJEE &ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountangs
ICAI FRN :ﬁ?luﬁt‘.
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N. CHATTOP tjxi _
PROPRIETOR

Membership No. 653249

Place: Kolkata
Dated: 2ol November, 2020

ICAT UDIN 200532490AAAAAT7493
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In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act,
with respeet to the loans & investments made and the guarantees provided
except in case of Advanees made to Ambootia Tea Exports (P) Lid. of Rs.6.43
crores (gross) & Ratanpur Land and Tea Estates (P) Ltd amounting to Rs.17.69
erores (gross) under the head Other Current Assets, 13({a). No special resolution
to grant such advance has been made available to us. No interest has been
charged on these loans which is not consistent with the provisions of Sce 186(7).
Refer Note No. 35 and 42,

L our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company did not receive any deposits covered under section 73 to 76 of the
Act and the rules framed there under with regard to deposits accepted from the
public during the year except for the matters stated below:-

Loan from Non Corporate entities:-Loan received from Ambootia Welfare Trust
of Rs.1.05 croves and from Emplovees Gratuity Fund (UBI) of Rs.0.35 crores.
Hector Beverdges Private Limited - Advances from Customer outstanding as on
41-03-2020 amounting to Rs.0.38 crores & Rs.0.001 Crores from Packaging
Qystem &Services, which has not been adjusted for a period of 365 days which
comes within the purview of definition of public deposit.

The Central Government has prescribed maintenance of cost records under
section 148(1) of the Act, for the Company. We have broadly reviewed such
accounts and records maintained by the company pursvant to the rules and are
of the upinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been
made and maintained but no detail examination of such records and accounts
have been carried out by us.

According to the information and explanations given to us according to the

hooks and records as produced and examined by us, in our opinion,

(a) the Company is not regular in depositing with appropriate authorities,
undisputed statutory dues/liabilities of Provident Fund, Professional Tax.
GST (West Bengal Registration GSTR-3B return non filing forJan'20 10
March'2zo, GSTR-1 Feb & March'2o ); stamp duty, service Tax. Corporate
dividend tax and Tncome tax (Tax Deducted at Source), VAT & CST& Cess.

According ta the information and explanations given o us, following undisputed
diles a5 stated above are outstanding as at March 31, 2020:-

| ————— — — E

MName of the Statute

The Employees’ Provident
Funds And Miscellaneous
Provisions Act, 1952&
Assam Tea Employeces
Provident Fun

Nature ol the
dues

Amount (Rs.)

| Period to wi'u_::_h 1

amourit relates

Provident Fund

9.19,49,084/-

April'19 to
March'20

The Employees” Provident
Funds And Miscellaneous
Provisions Act, 1as28
Assam Tea  Emplovees
| Provident Fund

Provident Funed

5,92 .95 300 -

Earher to Apnl
20149,
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TDS Due
mﬂiﬂ;ﬁ:"’us Due relates 1o
Income Tax Act 1961 ' 1,10,64,200/- | FY 2018-19&
Qeciaided by Prior perind .
Income Tax
Department
e
Income Tax Act 1961 under ﬁliari_;:-uﬂ 3, 1743,717 /- 2019 to 310
L . — sections March, 2020,
West Bengal State Tax on |
Professions, Trades, Prolessional 3,00,826/- Period Nov'lg
callings and Employments Tax it to March'20
Act 1979
r E . April 2016-
Stamp Duty Act # Stamp Duty 36,057,496 /- Mgi:th 2007 |
Goods & Service Tax Act — Goods & Includes dues
Wesl Bengal & Assam Service Tax 9,33.59,710/- | Rs.2.03 crores of
Gross Dues reported prior For Wesl 1,777,444 /= FY 2018-19 &
to set off against eligible Bengal rest for FY 2019-
input. __For Assam 20.
West Bengal VAT Act Wit Elpga! 48,008 /- i
CST ACT al 5,60,111/= Agnl, 13
' CST =7 19-200
Income Tax Act 1961 TCS 2536/- FY 2018-19
DIVIDEND TAX 4,34,105/ = Prior to 19-20
, |
GST TDhes on =
Assam Stock 218101/
. Transfer has
Goods & Service Tax Act = | 'heen taken input
West Bengal 8 Assam in West Bengal,
The Unpaid GST
Dues in Assam
over 180 days as
on 31-03-20208
since penod till
date of our
review has been
taken. input  in
West Bengal to January 20 te
TEIICE (R Sany March 20
liability which >
thee Co. s not
eligible 1o do
|
0 Liability o1 Rs.23,88,557
account of RCM CGST
was considered
on soctual basis | pgonmgssy
f remain unpaid SGST
curing the vear g
wrongly taken as
Inpui credit Rs.319803
thereby  liability IGST ‘
| understated.
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Note :

) Reconciliatuon of GST Input of GSTR 3B and GSTR 24 i3 under process.

2) Reconcihation of GST Electronic Cash and Credit Ledger Balance with
Books of Accounts is under process.

3) For the PF liability of Rs. 1,20,33,044 /= to Assam Tea Employees
Provident Fund, ‘Assam, relating to the period 01/08/2018 to
30/09/2018& 01/11/2018 to 31/12/2019 an mstalment programme
was granted on 26/02/20 by the Commussioner of PF for 36 equal
monthly instalment of Bs.3,34 251 /= against which the company was
directed to pay post dated cheques in their favour.

1) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records
of the Company examined by us, there are no dues of income tax, sales tox,
service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax and cess as at
March 31. 2020 which have not been deposited on account of dispute

except for the following:
Forum
NE;:::I::]W Nature of Amount where
pending
Dues (Rs. )
, X 78,000,000
!’r::::'Ii::i’I T:im;snd Provident Fimd - PF Authorities
it Happy Valley TE [[Rs.60,00,000) hus been kept :
Act deposited with the Authorities.
Income Tax
Demand out of
Scryting
Assessmient order
Income Tax Act /5 143(3) AY
1561 201718 164.648 lakhs| CIT (Appeal)
Ineome Tax
Demant out of
Income Tax Act Scruting
1961 Assessment onder
ufs143iz) AY
2016-17 7.77 lakhs{CIT (Appcal)
Detmand eul of
Income Tax Ac! Reetification
1061 Order 154 Av
201510 520.51 inkhslll‘] T (Appeal)
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Income Tax
Demind out of
Income Tax Ael Serutiny CIT (Appeal) Order]
1961 Assessmient order reduced the
ufs 1) AY demand  fo he
201415 71.85 lakhs{given effect..
Demand out of
Income Tax Ael Rectification
1961 Urder 154 Ay
2013-14 245.05 lakhs{CIT (Appeal )
Demand out of
Income Tax Act Recvision
1961 Orderagn Ay Appeal effect
2012-13 10,05 LkhstPending

viii. According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information

ix.

X1.

and explanations provided to us, the company has defaulted in the repavment of
loans or borrowings to the banks & financial institutions, Details of Default with
Overdue Installments and overdue interest amounting fo Rs.54.90 crores have
been reported in Note No.22 of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statement as on
41" March 2020.Exact period of default is not ascertainable from external
confirmations lo us,

The Company has not issued anyv debentures during the vear nor is anvthing
outstanding as on the balance sheet date.

Company has raised fund from F;CE, where interest due has been serviced.
Repayment of principal of ECB has moratorium till 14-Dec-2021.

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our
overall examination of the books of accounts, we report that the company has
utilized the Term Loan for the specified purpose during the vear as evident from
the information made available to us. Furthermore, the company has neither
raised moneys through initial public offer nor through further public offer during
the vear. Hence, the related reporting does not apply.

As informed to us, there has been no fraud on or by the Company
noticed during the period under review.

The information as regards whether the Company has paid/ provided for
managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated
by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act is not applicable
to private limited companies
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Place: Kolkata
Dated: 20t November, zo2o
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In our opinion and aceording to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company is not a nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order
is not applicable,

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties
are in compliance with sections 177 and (88 of the Act where applicable and
details of such transactions have been disclosed in the standalone Ind AS
financial statements as required by the applicable Ind AS except for matters
stated in point “e” of the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph stated above,
According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the reeords of the Company, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment nor private placement of shares during the current
finaneial year,

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into
non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them.

'i. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not

required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934, Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company,
Far & On Behalf of
N. CHATTERJEE & ASSOCIATES -
Chartered Accountants
FRN 317106k

N. cm*rmpné
PROPRIETOR)

Membership No. 055249

ICAI UDIN 20053240AAAAAT=493
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The Annexure referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under the heading “Report
on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our Independent
Auditor’s Report of even date, in respect to the internal financial control
under clause (i) of sub-section 3 of section 143 of the Act. of
DARJEELING ORGANIC TEA EST ATES PVT LIMITED for the vear ended
March 31, 2020, we report that:

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
DARJEELING ORGANIC TEA ESTATES PVT LIMITED (“the Company”) as of
March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the Standalone Ind AS financial
stitements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company's management and the Board of Directors are responsible for
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essertial components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (‘'ICAD"). These responsibilities include the design.
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal finaneial cantrols thal were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
aceounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Companies Act, 20 13.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial
controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by
ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to
an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by ICAL Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethieal requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained
and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects,

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit eﬁdenu:_u about rhr{*-
adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their
operating effectiveness. Our aundit of internal financial controls over financial

|'.-|_-_=- 14 t ]h
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reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and lesting
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk, The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error,

We believe that the audit evidenee we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls
svstem over financial reporting.

MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

A company’s internal financial contral over financial reporting is a process: designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of standalone Ind AS finaucial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, aceurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with generally
accepled acconnting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company
are being made only in aceordance with authorizations of management and directors
of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acguisition, use, or disposition of the company’s
dssete that could have a material effect on the standalone Ind AS financial
statements.

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected, Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

QUALIFIED OPINTON

Except for the matters stated in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph stated
below . in our opinion; to the best of our information and. according o the
explanations given to us, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial
comtrols over finaneial reporting were operati ively as at March 31, 2020,
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based on the internal control over financial reporting eriteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by 1CAL

Basis for Qualified Opinion

i) We have reviewed internal controls deployed within the organization &
compliances and its effectiveness #nd in our opinion the assessment & control
by the respective control owners need to be further strengthened.

b} The I'T based Accounting and Financial Reporting in Garden and Head office are
in different platforms and are not integrated by system process. In view of this,
the entire eonsolidation proeess at HO is virtually manual using MS excel, which
poses data integrity risk.

¢) The company failed vo comply with the provision of section 138(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013 by not appointing the internal auditor during the vear.

d) We have come across few cases of deviation in supervisory control over daily
cash book balances of various garden accounts. This indicates need for internal
control improvement and stringent supervision on the aforesaid process.

For & On Behalf of
N. CHATTERJEE & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants~—"

FRN 317106E
-
-, 't::. : £
N. CHA‘Iﬂ;{'}Pﬁ. '

PROPRIETO
Membership No. 05324y

Mace: Kolkata
Dated: 20t November, 2020

ICAL UDIN 20053249AAAAAT7493
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A ARSETS

DARIEELING ORGANIC TEA ESTATES PRIVATE LIMITEDR
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2000

I Nom-current Assels

Praperty, Plant and Fguipamest
Capital Work -iu-Progres

Intangible Asiets

Fimaoscaal Asicts

I Cither Financinl Asets
Ot Mowte-Cilrreuil Aszets

2 Current Assets

Currend Tax Asselx

Invemnries

Biclogical Asscts other thun Bearer Plants

Finnncial Assets

i Loans
{in) Timde Récevaldes

i}

Cash & Cash Fquivalents

Oihver Corment Asscis

Todal

B EQUITY & LIABILITIES

I Equity

Equity Slmre Capital

Onher Equsity

1 Non Current Liabilities
Fisancial Liabiliics
[{]] Boarmmwmgs

Pronasiong

Onler Mon Current, Liabilities
Defermed Tax Liabilines (net)

3 Current Liabilities
Fimancial Liabilitves
i Borrmwings
1) Trade Payshices

(i)

Chhier Francind Lbalitics

Oilser Currest Linbalities

Provision.

Chuirrent Tax Dbl e ()

Tuisl

Signilicant Accounting Policics and other MMt

Uither noles 1o Ihe Rnencial siatemnals

Male Mo,

;:.nql-

i1
A

2

13

14
13

It
i
15
19

21
12
2]
L |
L

As ot
Jist Murch, 2020

iln Rs.p
As at

315t March, 2019

41886.83,038 104365 30,004
60,19 508 4047 69 552
071.49,782 35,71.936
2443591 6124
221.83,755 319781 645
ATIG0,99.97% 112565, 79,401
49,536,615 3517415
601 64,449 37837728
- 21342082
45.56,831 59,760,374
ITIIEN 4RR7.07.312
12575877 94.95.393
92575298 g )
4115,78.062 12972,38.017
46376.78,037 125538 17 418
JIRSIRAT0 328538470
(1408.20,451) TART0, [T 049
1RTTIR019 TIG55.56,410
1600408942 1 3500, 1 B2
3291,25.553 2308 158,141
TTRAT,064 3043717
J712.41.261 16130 86633
23196.24,7T62 32446.55313
GOGEINT. 14 T EE35T
B66.46,732 13604075
GTERGLI1S 1397.52.27T1
G40,71.355 2250, 17,040
14255943 142,535,543
21203.35,257 15136,25,. 6806

46376, 78.037 12551897 418

The accompenying nates form an infegral peit of te [nmcial satements
This is the Balance Sheet referred toin our peport of oven date.

As per oar Report of even date
For 5, CHATTERIEE & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Acoountants

ICAL Fitm Regisiration No. ITI6E. [
5\

hodloys

Nilwdri Chattopadhysy
Priprieior

Membership No. 053249
uniN: 20053249
Flace 1 Kolknia

Date = 30.10.2030

= 'l|h'i Pt \

AARAATH495

For and oo behall of the Board of Directors

DopaSigaed by
Renlort Biomand

CIMBEAMCDTDAEY
Rembert Hemond

{Pirector)

Bajan Singh
[Compamy Secretary)

(ot

Sanjuy P Bansal
(Dircctor)
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DARJEELING ORGANIC TEA ESTATES PRIVATE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FROFIT AND LOSS FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31xt MARCH, 2020

1 INCOME
Beovenue oot Chevations
i her hncome
Total Income

Il EXPENSES
Purchatés
Chamges m Inventories of Finiched Goods
& Stores & Spares
Employes Benelits Expense
Finance Cowis
Pepeecration and wmortizadion expenge
Other Expenses
Tolal Expeases

LI PROFIT! (LOSS) REFORE TAX & EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

Exceptional liems

IV PROFIT! LOSS) BEFORE TAX

Tax expense
Cuareond Jux
Incorne Tax for cartier years
Diefenred 1max

Total Tax expense
¥ PROFIT/ (LUSS) FOR THE YEAR AFTER TAX
V1 OTHER COMPRENENSIVE INCOME
I liems that will not be elassified 1o profit and s
i Incoenc Tax relafing B itenis that will ot be

clussified o prufly and loss
Tatal (ber Comprebensive Income For The Year

VI TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR

EARNING FER EQUITY SHARE
{Fage value af Bx - each)

Busic (Rs.)

Difmved (Rs.d

Significant Accounting Policies and ather Information
Oehier nates 1o thi financial stalements

in Rsih
z For the Year Endéd For the Year Ended 31m
Note N 5y o Macch 2020 Nharch 2019
Th FF55,45,991 0495.40,824
g 16,34, 764 210,24 592
1007 | 50,754 20705 65417
2459.27,149 Tie%.51 044
b1 ] 1096, 71,286 (447,14, 590
i THIN.11,569 696857983
30 24495 10,321 244321959
& An 1618.37,312 P00 215
M 18424 45.BK) 2537.12.361
J031,7H519 20491.29.574
%ﬂﬁi 11415342
IA (734990, 354) *
(5041085118} I 1495 842
12
18.76:223
(12271,12,056) (1514,40.412)
{12271, 12.986) (1495 64, 189)
ELiRL e 11000031
13
(R31.00.714) (90, 45.000)
13832446 5,106,319
(390,69, 263) {63,28,081)
(3553344401} 1544, 70,350
47
{1 1B09) 4.90
{1 16.09) 490
I-3
1449

The sccompanyiing notes form in (ategral part of the financial samements

This is the Balance Sheet refermad bo'in oar repon of even date.

As per our Report of eves daie L
Far N CHATTERIEE & ASSOCIATES r":
Charfered Accountanty

ICAL Firm Reghirution No, 317 106E

e e _'LL... .

Niladei Chattopadhyay 9 x\.!
Proprietor A :

Membership Na. 053249 N

UDIN: 200552 49 AAAAAT7493

Plaee : Kalkata
Drate 1 20,1 02020

For and on behall of the Board of Direcior

[ocsbecs < lmcy

‘{f'.'r; Y ;‘-"k
;"-‘ P e\ 'ﬁ‘ew;rmd Sanjay P Bansal
l’;— ! A {Direetor) (Director)
LA [ M
P | RF ] .I '- i
I-I.': :1':-_. 1 JIT"" 3‘ 1— S""‘:"&L
b Rajan Siogh
et {Company Secretary)
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DARIEELING ORGANIC TEA EXTATES FRIVATE LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3 MARCH, 1930

e Rk
Vot tha Veur Finded 310t Whareh 010 P tha Viur Eded 300 March 3000 _
A CAST FLOW FROM OFERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit befoer 12y & fter Proepeionsl liems (A VRER | [A) 11458 pad
Nl s smmarnt fow-
ipreristion & swriosion Frperess IR IANT NiT 14208
L TTEAA A0
[Brafin oo nabe of Fred Aseen ({8 it
LLiwws oo e of Fioed Amures oLAR 2 12301
ety i iy Chusmlivy Ft pocion o, TRE .
IProviniom fiod Dol Diebis LN LU B
Frovinom for Doabefial Cupital Advances R ] .
Pravinge For Dobefad Oubor Maon Cament Advances 108 TR ET) .
[Preninlon for Doabafisl Ads Gt b3 Sy (LT
rantulonm ool Doshifil Oner Canem Advisoes 3090, 7755 .
[Flmsuge o pELLE NS rand 042
Chamei i fudi sl o bakolayilan] masicis 113.11,081 (79,340,106
Ovtere commpreiegrmve =i — MR e B4 3000
— nsaekan -t
Operating prefl Befors Warkisg Capits) cumnge ALY T 4200.31,007
Acpusimesdy by Warkeng Cigutal chnges
Dgremses{incremas | m o perrom oty fmmeeial sasens {17408y (LT
Dhecrrgse{imcrenan ) m ocher mos cureme sscr [T ERT VM0 R 340 )
DeercascVmcreasel i Invoniorics i Ml ) AT 185000
Dvocremet incresee) in Loand LY {1 by
Decressciincrcanc) in oereod fnuacial saen
Tt focdivibibes TN 371084428}
ietuer fimancand pesres - A8 1T
Diecrtaieimcrcasc] in olher curend ssach (LR R F ] RN, il
st Vi vk § S 1 sl i el BT ALY o L |
|werptng ey prsn) an o Gurvens lesbaBused (T RE78) 283, 030§
[mcremsn derrme ) sn soret Sl bafakic
sl paryakics (18,5704 Adiawa g7
(e Fimarsisl lishibiics pal IR F THIN 04 Y7
Increancidecrese) it odor comens lishshicy O 10T LS
Fncecaned devosi ] in: abit] Lo providisni z *
| ﬁ%ﬂl!
Cuih grosested fram uprrnibany (388.45,11%) (12247.171)
(T pasid) ¢ refamd veceived (met) 14,1930
Poed cash Eram aperallng dcihitie L6329 [ AL
CASH FLOW FROM INVERTING AUTIVITIES
Parchase of Property, Pl gl Erssprmest, W (27512878 (3569 03, 776)
Sale proceeds of Propesty, Plan i Expupssem, U979 FILARSLG AL il
et pash goaeraied [ fused] s invesding seiivitie 64325087 ITTMLAL TISY
CoOASH FLOW FROAE FINANCING ACTIVITIES
ncreaae dectemse) frivm bag vorm bosroiwang o T4MR07, 140 Ry LY R
Inoreased devteae] in short leim borrens uags | HL96240) LEL BN Ty
Drvisbend Paid {25,0855T) -
P st S — LT
Nei champes im Coch wal Hamb bylimie LB 484 (4132448
Sl Tmorewe d [} Decrentr in Cadh asd Beak babeoces
Bstamee wihe sud of e yeat 11575877 LRk L
Malamce aithe beginming of the yomr #5509 L47 !
Werchanges in Cash gnd Bank balinces A4S 0L
LT H

The cadk lovw stademnend Bas boon propared smder the idoedt methid in sl ool 18 ndian Socounnag Sandand (Ind A%) 7. Staemesd af Cadh Flaws.

The sseampaty iy sseey (om g inpgesl ot o0 e fmmmoe! st
Thin i’ e {mah. Florw: SSicat cnsrme sefizrread i o inm |rplil‘|||l|t\llll‘lll
A par aur Heport of iven dibi

For M CHATTERIEE & ASSOCIATES ( For gl ww bkl of the Basrd of Direeenrs

{iisecter)

Charjerail Armusiraty
1AL Firm Reginirmibem H-. JTIERY.

\ff i*\_mﬂqiew

Nlladei Chattepadhyay

u—n-;up
::::-2&55‘3141,&4!1& T4
Dimie 2 o, § g 300w
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DARIEELISNG ORGANIC TEA ESTATES PFRIVATE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED Jia MARCH, 3026

1w Fix )
A EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL (Refer Note Moo |d)
Al ul Aam
it March, 20 Al March, 2019
Ralamir &1 the year heginming AIREIBATO NSRRI
Chmngen i oquity shise capleal duning fhe year . SR NG 360
Balaner sl fhe vear el _Ml J&,!ﬂ,ﬂﬂ
I ISSTRUMENTS ENTIRELY ECAITY I8 MATURE {Refer Nole N L)
As mf Axml
bt March, 3010 Wt March, 3519
Balance &l thi year beginning ERRG 00
Changes in preferanos share capital durimg tha yeat - TSR0 S60)
Balance ot the year end -
€. OTHER EQUITY (Refer Nate No. 15}
For ibe year eaded Yist March, 220
Rocserve & il Otmer Comprehemive
mcome
Capital s
Securites . Remessareneeni of
Ml.iﬂl.hl Premsiien Caphlal Roserve  Rrtwined Exruings defined beneft plsn
Reservi
Balsnce ax ut 137 April 2019 §55.00,0400 SRARE TN J9IE107 407 [LEEIBHELH E ] [T16ST 19 TN T
Add : For the Year . - . (TR T4, 132) {2500 68 20} (3RS 44 800 )
Add: On cveriton of CUPS inde ogally sharos . - . - -
Add: Curreat Yedr Truncfer (Eguity) - i 2 -
Adid: Overcharged Depn in enriler year - =
Lewst Déiwidend payabile on equity shares . . - - - -
Liessd Thivhilead payable on preforemes aharc : - =
Lesat Dividend distributban tay payable -
Less: Ammpritred during the your - = =
Lows: Adjosiment ef [ mpalrmsent Lois (3731550155, (371315811955
Halanie an ai J1s8 March, 20 L 54, e, [k SOJER,TA G § LEAS 6 21E (AR 33.074) (E10.26,597) (LR 20451 )
For the year pnded 31t March, 2009
Reserve & Qe Coijorebensive
Parien) Surphas Income o
iz Securelies Remeszuremeni al
!l::r-puqq Dessasie Caplial Resprve  Hetaingd Fermings defimed IemeRd plan
ERETHE
Nalsnce z3 ol Vsl Agril, HHA | 5% s, Tk SRR, AN NS0T T lll.l.II,IT_ﬂ'H} (R e ERET) TR0
Aald : Fir e Year - - - 6 010,00,031 (65,20 681 154471350
Adsl; O comrvacion of CCPS dnso squiy tharm: . e E
Add: Cuoeremt Year Traneler (Equlny)
Al Crverchorged Deps na exrbior year = ®
Lens: Diividend paysblc on cquaty shaccy - . =
Liws: Dwwademl payablc on preferonce shaics = (29 LAY = {28 R 805
Less: Diivadend diasrbrition Lak payilde - (4.5, 105) = (4.3, 1035)
Liai Aimditaond duidiag (he vosr - . .
Balance i ai Js March, 2045 159,000, 1M S0458.73.001 S9051 7 47 1491105 148) ALH6EST I TAEMLL TG

Tike socompanyimy ncies form an istegral pert of e fimmeinl siatements

oo N CHATTIRIRE & ASSOCIATES ["* For and on beball of the Bonrd of Directars

 hmrmwml Aremaismn \

Il[ﬁ-*-h‘hl"l“l '\

k:- — Q“'ﬁ“" - [:ri —Sanjuy  tawsal
(Dvrector) (Do ter)

u.-h-u,'u HEYES 'l'_'__ o

wes: 2005 3249 AAAANT 42 'ﬁmf-_;«:g*\

Dane 30012000 (€ ompany Secretury)
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ARJE ITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31t MARCIL, 2010

1 COMPANY INFORMATION

2.1

1.1

Dagecting Orgamse Ten Fstates Private Limited {the Company) was meorponated i India on | 3th Janvary 2008, The Company is doaiciled m India having iils regitiened affiee at Clo Regus Grandepr Offices Privale Limied,
P Ascadia, 9h Floor, 44 Abanindes Nath Thakme Sarand, Kolkam — P00 18 {shitied (rom 34A METCALFE STREET 7TH FLOOR. Kolkata 700 088 shce Tth October” 2000) The Company is engaged m the Cultivalion
o Mpnufiscturing of Tea and ather agricaimrmi produets.

Eusis of Preparation of Financial Statrmenis

Siuipment of Complinnce

Thirse financial statemenis have been prepated in sccordance with the Indian Accounting Stancdards (hetemadler reforad f as the Tnd AS') as nolificd by Minisiry of Comporats affairs pureoant i section 113 of the Companics
Ach 7013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies { Indian Acconnting Sandards) Rules, 2015 and Companies { Indian Accountmp, Stencdands) Amendment Rules, 2016

The financial stalements have been pripared on acormal sntd gomng concorn bisie. The scommbing policaes are applied consistently to sl the periods presenied in the fimancizl slaiements.

The Campamy’s Tinancial performance has been adversely allected due to downlurm of the 1ea mehsstry. Bk oF vorking capiel support from banks and aperational tsice manly because of mereased cost of production wnd
mlverse wenther comditiong. However, the Company coold mitigate pait of the increased gost throngh several cost redinction meaniires and increase in sales prices. The compant has boen facing severe working capital
ormtininli mad cxtermial factors bevond the control of the Company. The liquidity issves faced by the Company are boing discussed with the leaders and sharchokiers. The company & exploring vinous lisd fuse options o
gase of lyquidiy constrants on fle company, Addinanally. te Company |5 faking varsus cost reduction measures which shall impmve i operagional efficiencies. The management is confideni that the Company will be able
1y genetaie sufMicient cady fovws through addithnsl fond raise snd profitable operation smproving ifs net working capital position to discharge it shon term and long term Habilities. Hence, Dnancil siaieawnis have beea
prepared on n poing concern basis

Al Asseis and LiabHities have been classified st comonl of non-ciimment 45 per the Company’s nommal opcraling cvele and other erberin os 561 ol in the Division 1 of Schedule 11010 the Companizs At 3013, Based on the
natare of products ungd the time berween acquisition of assets for processing and their realation m cesh and cash equivalents, the Company bins ascertained it operating @vle as 12 months for the purpose of current of non-
currint iassifiention of assers mud lobilities

The Ninane al staiements ane presented m Indmn Kupees (Ks 5, which is the Compamy's funcrional cummency,

Hasis of Measurement
The Ml stabenments lave been preparcd on o hisiorieal cost basts (which mehsdes deemed st as per bnd AS 101, excopt for the Rk ing asseas and labidiies whach havee been mcaured ol B valuc,

i1 Certain financial assers and liahilites measered ol i vaboe (refer acconnhing policy egarding finansial I ments
(i} Delined benefits pland - Plan atsets measured af fair value
(i) Cerain Biological Asscis (includmg Unplockod Green leaves ) - micasored st Fair Vatoe less cost tosell

1Al Exempiions from reguirement of Other INT AS
A1) Deemed cont for Property, Mant and Fawipment
The Company hai elected (o measure all ite Property, Plant and Bquiprcnis af the Previous GAAP cafrving amount &5 its decmed coslon the dote of transiton i fnd AS

1A-2 | Business Combination
The Commpany has nof electad 1 appiy IND AS 103- Busmess Combination . retraspectively 1o past busibess combination that ane occured befire the dase of transron b IND AL

(A=} ] Lense
The Company: has asseesed the classification of ench elenient i finance or operating lesse af the date of mantitinn 1o Iod A% on the hasin of the fich pnd circdmstances exisling as af thal date

£ AL ALl 4okl
The Compamy has the 1
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE VEAR ENDED 31at MARCH, 2020

L4

1B-11 Estimalics

Oy assessmcid of e cxfmaies made wader the Previous GAAP linancial sttementz, he Company has concluded thay there 5 o necessity 1o revise the cstimmes under Ind A%, ng there s no ohjective evidence of an eor m
those cetimaies. However, estimates thal were reguined tnder Ind AS bial ol teguired andet Previons GAAP are made by the Company Tor the releavant repating dates reflecting eandstions existing 55 at that datz.

These Are 4% under

= Fair Yahation of financial instrumeni

» Impairment of financial assets based on expected credi loss model

= Diglerminatian of e d dcounied value for financial instiuments camed a1 amornised cost
= Riglogical axset meazured ut Foir Valoe less Cost to Sell

B3} [assification and measnrement of Financial Assels

The classification of Nnancial mssets 1o be measured &t amonised cost or fair valoe through ofher comprebensive moome o through profit & boss m made on fhe basis of the facts and gucomeymoes that exmed on the date of
frapwshion 1o lod AS

Ind AS 116 was sotified by the Minisiry of Corporaie AfTains and it is epplicable for annual reporiing pertods beginning 0a o alter | April 2009, The Company also s 14 iea estabes in Darjecting under boag, lorm kease
The mpact of tis AS is il substantial with regard to the size of the company and it does not materially impae the fnancil sutemeet of the compury sl hence the management has decided oo fotlow this Ind AS

The prcparation of lnancil stalements reguines mamigement w make judgments, estinoies snd asswmplions in te application of accownting policies thal aifect the reporicd amounts of asecty, lubiliney, moome s cxpemes
sid disclosure of comtingent lubilitees. Actoal results may differ from these estimates. Continuous evalustion i done on 1he extimation and judgments busal on historical expetionce s eher fectors, including expeslalivny of
Tature gvents thal are belicved o be reasonable. Rovisiois i socounitig cstiniaes are fecognised prospectively.

Information aboul crilical jodgiments in applying sccounting palicies. as well a3 estimates and assumptions that have the most Significant ¢fToct o the carmying amounts of essees and Habilines wiahsg the mext financial year, s
metuded m ihe followmg nofce:

2L Pefined Benefit Flang

The conl and the present valive of the defined henefit gramine plan sre derermined uzing actuarial valuanans. An actuanind valeaticn involves making various assumptions thal may deffer. from aciual develepments in funee
These include the determimation of appooprisic discounit rale; cstimating fotsre salary increases and mortality rates Do W the complesiies wolved m the valustion and 5 Jang-lerm nature, & defined benelil abligation &
highly senuitive to changes in (hese wsswnptions. Al sesamptions are reviewsd at cach reporting date For further details refier Nolde 400,

242 Fair value meayyreocit of linatcial instraments
When the Tair vabues of financial agscic and Fnancnl habilites rocorided in the Balance Sheet cannol be measured baded on quated prices in active markeis, ther Gir valoe 13 messared samg valudion rechmques. The mpan

tir hese models are taken fromn obscrvable markets whene porsible, but where fhis is nol feasible, a degree of fudpement b reguined in cotablshing fair valics Judgements inclnde contidenbion of mpats soch kg Nguidiny rii
eredit risk and volstiliy. Chanpes in sssamptions aboo these faciors coubd affect the reporied fair value of Mnancial instruments See Nole 44 for further disclosnnes

T,
243 Depreciarion and amarti tion 227G TEr S
A T

Diepreciation and smortisalion i based on management ceimmates of the foturg wecful Tives of the property, plant ci i E::Mnﬁy:hu; doe 1o lechiological deve
ennditinns and nther faciere and may result i changes in e eximated wsefal life and in ihe depreciation and amoris

[
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DARJEELING ORGANIC TEA ESTATES PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315t MARCH, 2020

2.4.4 Prnvision: and Cantingencies
Provisions amd contmgencies ane baed on Momogerngnt s best cxtmate of The iabilities bassd on the fots known at the Ralince Shaet date

24,5 Tuxation
The Company 5 engaged in agnculiural activities and aceondimgly; snificant fudgement is Involved in determiming die s Balebity for the Compavy. Abar there ae many travsschons sl csloulations donng the omdmany
cuwrse of busdness for which the pltimate mx datermination i uncerrain, Further judgement ix involved in determining the delermed lax pasithon on the balace sheel dose.

2.4.6 Fair Vahit o[ Bl

The Tair valiac of Diakhgical Assets is delermined hased on the Selling Price of Finiched Goods bess Cost of Sakes and Manulactoring Cost.

3 SIGN INTING POLICIES

&1 Hevenee Brepenition
Revenue is recagnised 10 the extent 1 is probahle that the economic benefits will flow to the Company sind the revenus can be relably ncasured, regardless of when the paymeit i beang receivel

The specific recopnition erilerin described below are me belore revenue is recognisod:

Revenus from the sake of goods s recoanised when all significant risks and rewiandy of ownership of the goods iie tmsterred 16 the buyer, as per the terme of the eontract and no signifizant uncertainty ex/sis regarding the
amaunt of the consideration thar will be derived from the sale of goods. [n Case of Anction Sabes, revenne ix recognised on Completion of Aaclon and i case of consigiment sakés, revente 1§ recognised on receiving
imfanmatian from the consignee.

Revenue is mesmred af the fair valoc of the contiderafion rectived of receivahle. Wking into novount contractunlly defined terms of payment, It aveludes mibes my, Valne added e (vAT), Goods and Service Tax. Tmde
Drivcounts, Vohune Rebates and Reruma.

Interent fogoms
Interest Income i recognised on o time propoction bases tikieg o gocounl the amount susianding and the applicable interest rate,

Dividesid
Revenue is recognised when the right o revenve the pavment is established by the neportong date

3.2 Property, Plant and Eguipment

Fropery, Pham and Fgquipment 1= staed at acquisition oost net of accomautalcd doprocistion and sccomudatod mmpacrment loties (e a8 per Cost Model) iFamy. Cost comprises pirchase price inclsdmg Import duties snd
other non-refundable dities and taxes, bofrowing cost if capitalization critenia arc met and other directhy atrthutable cost for broinging the Assets fo its present becation and condition. Froehokd Land i bowever carrmed af

Histoncal Cost

Bearer Plants (comprising of mamee tea bushes and shade wegsy which s uved m the produscison or wupphy of agrcalivie prodoce and expocied 1 bear prodisce for more than o penod of fwedbve motiths are capitalived os o
par of Property, Plant & Equipment. The cost of Bearer Plant ichades all cost incurred till the plants are ready fof commercial Tarvest which intludes the cont of lind preparation, ncw plunting and mainicaance of nowly
planted bushes until masarisy, Bearer Mant are depreciancd from the date when they are ready for commercial harvest.

‘,.:::h The cost 'of replacing part of an item of Proporty, Pland and Equipmcent is recogniscd in the carmying sfvount of the Bem only wiken it 15 probab
1- and the cost of the mﬂmmhmﬂulmﬂy Alrmmdmmmwmhw:nrmﬁ e

et economis benefits amboddicd within the
] prarund i which they ane inciirred
iy Plant and Equipment.
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Property. Flant and Equipment which are not ready for imtended wse as on the date of Balance shect arc disclosed ax "Capatal Watk=in-progread®. Irrmature beaved plants, inciadmng the et incorred for procurement of new
seedn nned mamizmnce of murseries, are carried i cost less sy recognized impairment lozses nnder capital worksineprogress, Couls sncurred for mfilliog meluding block mGlling are generally recognined i the Statement of
Pradis and Logg enless there is a vignificant increzse in the vield of the sections, in which case such costs are copitalized nnd deprecimied over the remaming useful life of the rctpactive sections

lizrms of Properey, Fland and Equipment scqusred through exchange of non-monetary asseis are measored at faie value, unbess the exchange transaction {acks commereal subsingce o the fair value of elther the azset
recetved of mitel given up o nnt relishbe meavirable. b which case the astet cuchanged t recorded at the carrying amoint of the asset given up.

The Assels which are el For Sale shall be rechissitiod to Currend Assels onby i it carrying amount will be necavered principally thivagh o sabe transaction {wilhin onie year) rather than throngh conmung s

Depreciation aod Amortization. -
Drepreciation on the Company s Frecd Asséts has been chwrged onbe following basis:
il Digpreciathon oo the fved nsschs have been charged on the Writien down vabiie method. Depreciation fs provided hased on geelil Jife of the assets as prescribed in Schedule 11 of the Congames Act. 2013

I respacict o the following assere, ueful lives different from Schodule || havie been considered on the basis of iechnical eviluation. 55 wnder -

- Deprecantbon oa Bearer PLants has been provided on Sraight Line Basis ot the et determined congidering usefil fives of tea bushes of 75 Years 10 130 Years. The Besidua] Valie i caxe of Bearer  Planiy has boon
comnaidered o he F% of Original Cogh

- Prepreciation oo Brikimg has becn provided oh WDV Bt sl the rdes delemiined contidering weefl lives of 75 vear, The Residual Value in case nf Building has been considered 10 be 10% of Chrigimisl Crost

= Pheprecintion on Plant £ Machinery hay been provided on WV Hati af the rated determined congaderang sefol lives of 37 year.

« Dicprecistion on Mator Vehiches hnt beon provided on WV Tlasis af the rates determuned considering useful lives of 10 year, The Residusl Value in case of Building has been considered i be $09% of Original
Cast,

Fiie astimated wefal bves, resudona] valies sl depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting perwd and the effact pl sny changes in estimaie iz scceamled v on & progpective hasis

Intengibic Assets

Tntangible assets with finsg wsctul fives that arc soquired yepmmicly are camcd at cont los accumuluied amortsation and accumudiied impawment losses. Amonisation is rooognised on n strnight fine basis over (e
citmmated usell lives The citimated usefal life and amortisatsen incthod are revipwed a1 the e of cach reporting porind, wath the cffect of wmy chanpes in estimale being sccounled fo prospective hawus intangible aatoly
wwith indefinite wiotul lives that are acquired separasely sre curricd i cost less impairment losses

The usetil life of an infangihle assel 5 considered fimite where the tights o such ssscts are limited 1o o specificd period of time by contract of law (e.g., patente, lcepose, teademarks, franchise and eervicing rights) of the

likelihoad of iechnical, fechnological absolesconce [ c.g . cmpaler software, design, protolypes ) or commersial obsolescence (.8 lenser known Inands dee those 0 which adequats marketing support sy nol be provided ), I,
there are nozoch limitations, the uscfil Nife & faken bo be indeTiniie

ninngzhle asseis of the Crmpany with Huike weful lives compre soquircd computer software. Cost of saltwite I capitalised where it s expected 1o provide famire enduring esonamic benefis.
C anitalisation cosis include licence Toes and cosi of mplementaton ¢ ysivm micpraiios seraces. The covle are capitalised in the vear in whech the iclovant software 15 implemented Tor uge and is amortised scrodd o period ot
exceeding 10 vears. Expenses incuned on upgradation [ enhancements s charged off o3 revenoe expenditune unbess they brng similar signaficani sddstional benefiii

1 chmpany oung mdenarks @ the names of various gardens nwned by the company 1o prevent misuse of these names. As the Trademarks are mo inended For comtribatmg For Ruture cconomic benefits. it cost cannif be
rehabily catimated As the afrementionod condifiens do net safisfy | the ssme havo nat heen caplialized in the Books of Aceounts by the munagemenl..

Son Currenl Aywets bl for Salg
Momcirrenl aductt o dutpovial giotips compriting assets and liabilites are classified as held af the following criteria mre met (1) decision has been

cale im oty preseni condstian () the axictt are boing sctively markciod and (i) sdle had been
Subsequently, such noa-current avscts and duposal groups clasificd as held lor salc are

aminriised. x ; A
v - v
(e e/
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fnvesiment Propergy

Investinent Property comprices Free-Hold Lands that sre beld for Capital Apprecistion s 1 has been beld for o curreatly undetermined fishure wse and are recagnised at cost

An Tnvestment Properny are derecognised cither when they sre dicposed off or when they are pormancilly’ withdrawn fioi 056 wnd no fature econsmic benolit i expecicd The difference berween the riel disposal proceeds and
the earrving amaomd of the assel is recognised in faternent of profit and Joss i the period of derecognitinn

Leage

The determinanion of whether an arrangement i, of comans, a lease s basod on the substance of the arangoment of the mceplion date, whether folfiliment of the anmangefmont i dependent on the use of & specific apeet o
assets or the amangement conveys a right to ume the aasel even if that right B not explicily specified in an smmangenont.

Leases in which s subsiantul portion of the risks and revesds of ownerdhip are retained by the loior are clastified at operaling leases. Payments and receipts smder such leases are recagnied i the Swmement of Profit and
Losi on & stuight-line basis over the term of the bease unless the lease payments i the lessor are structured to mereass m fine with expected general inflation fo compensate for the lessir's expected inflationary cost
sncrcased, i which case The same are recognised 4s an expense in line with the contrectual ferm

leates nre classificd a4 finance leases whenever the tevms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rgwards incidental io pwncrehip io the leiwee Aisch siquired dnder Tmance lesse ae capitalized at kawer of the fair
valng and the present value of mnimuam kkase payvment.

Impairment of son-finapcial assely

As at cach balance shoet date, the Company assesscs whether there i an mdicatson thal sn assct may be mmpared sid abo whither there is an indication of reversal of impairmen! lost recogniéed m ihe previows penods. Il
uny indication extsts, or when mnual impairment tesimg for an aeset is requined, if any, the Company delermines (he recoyverbie sount and impairment foes 5 reeognised when the camyng amount of an isset exareds i
ineaoverabhe. A

Beeovetable aowint 5 determined -

a) In the came of an indwidinl svsct, a8 the higher of the Rir value kss oodt (o sell and the valie m yse : and

I} Iy the case of cash generaing unil {a group of ssel thal goacintes sdentificd, dependent cash flaw), o the higher of the cath generaring unit's fuir valie bess cost 10 sell and the vidoe in

in nssessmg value in wse. the estmated fawre vash Tows are disconnied fo e present valoe sang o pre-ax dscoundmg rale that reflect the corment market assessment of the time yalie of the money w the sisk spulic
i the st T determuiming firvale fess costof disposal, reeem markel irmassction i ke ko sccoant 11 na sech amaction can be adentificd, ai sppropriste valualbon model B wed. Mhese caleulatiang ane corrohomted
by valuation muhiphes. quoted share prices lor publicly traded compasies o otley svallable falr value indivators.

Elnpatial Instrupents

A Financial instrainent i sy contract that gives rize in a financial asset of nne entity and o Ananciod Rakiliy oeeguity instroment of another eniiry,

ety wtad mepsrement of Finan gl Asesiy
All financial atses are recognised mitially a1 fair valoe plus ar minws, in the case of finuncial psets not recorded af ol valie through profit or boss, transaction costs that are altributablc fo the acquisslion of the Tnancial issel

Fimaneisl nssets are classified. st mitial recognition, i the sime manner o5 descrbed i subsequent measarement.

Prchases of gakce of finmcinl sssets (hat roquane delivery of assets within 4 time frame established by regulanion ar comvention in the marker place (regular way nades ) are recognised on the trade daie, | ¢ ihe dale the
Company commits i purchase or scll the asset

Hubseaquen] meamrenienl

For parposes of subsegquent meaxorement, financial aseels are classified i Foor catégorses:

(2} Financial aszets at amaoriised cosi

() Fimancinl ass2ts ot fair value through other compretbensive mcome (FYTOCT)

(&) Fimancial assets at fzir valse throogh prodil or loss (FVTFL)

() Faputy imstrisnents measured o fakr valoe through other comprehensive ingome (FVTOCT)

(=
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED Mst MARCEH, 2020

Finaical
A financial asset that meets the following fwo condiions 18 meained af amorised soit el of any write dowii For mmpainment) oskss ihe ssset 15 designaied al fuir value through profit er loss under the fuir value optios

i} Buminess muded test - The objocinve of The Compamy's business mndel 5 to hold the Fumacial itsct to collect the continemal caih fows {mther than to sl the Instrumant priae to s cantractual matueity i reallze its faie valoe
changes).

) Cash fow chemeteristios tes © The contractisal terms of the financial gaset give rie o specified dates o cash Mows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal smcini ol tetanding,

After il messnrement, such financil atsets are subsequently measured st smonised cost using the ¢ ffecte mierea mie {EIR) method. Amontised cost b cakoubiied by taking into svcound asy divcount of premiom on
sugirition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the BT The EIR smorttation s inechisded us Foance income by the profil o logg The losces aricing from irmpairment are recognmed in the prafit or kg

Fiffective Interest Rate {FIR) method 15 a method of caleulating the smortised cost ofa debt instrument and of allocating miened] incame over the relevant period. The effective rate i he mate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts | inchading all fecs gnd poants paid or received fhat Torm s inlegral part of the cffective intercst fake, Dandsction costs and oifer preminms o discomnts | theouh the expected 1ife of the debr nsirunicnt or
where spprogiriiie, 8 shofer penod B e Aot carmymg amomt on initinl recegnition

A Aigls s fa00 Ine thiough other compeehgnsive pecome (Fy TUR

A Vinancial nsset that meets the following rwo conditbons s measured at fair valoe through other comprelensive income unlexs fhe paset is devipnated of fair valhue thiotigh profit of kst abder the i vialoe aption

1} Busimess medel test - The financil st i bebd withen & bivincss model whase objective 15 achicved by both coliecting contractusl ewsh lows and selling financial asvets
{11 Cash Now characicrstics iexi  The coniracioal icrmee of the Tmencul axect give rise on apecified dates b cath flvwe that ane solely payments of principnl and interest on the principal gmount susEmmndisg

FYTIL s & residial category For limancial ssscts. Any fnancial meset, which dees nol meel (e crilria for catpgorization as st pmordired conl or as FYVTOCL is cheslied e at FVTPL

in sddition, the Compuny moy elect (o designnbe o financ il axset. which otherwise mests amartined cost or FVTOC] criteria, ad at FVTPL. However, sich election 15 allowed oaky il doing 5o redisees of eliminates o
measuremenl of FECogniton inponsistoncy (refamed 10 as ‘sccouming musmatch’ ) that woild otherwise arise fom measunmg finsool assets and Tinaneisl labilines or recogninmg the gains or lasses on them on dafferent
s

Fimmineinl assets miclided withén the FVTPL category sie mmeasuned ot lair vahee with sll changes recognived in the stalcment of profil and loss

F.qui“- insLramenls wjkhmhﬂhuﬂhm:ﬁsﬁmﬂﬂ“m Fou all other equity mitrunveni, ihe {ompamy may make an crrevocalle clection 16 present moother complehendive income subsogqiicn! changes m the
[air waline, The Comtpany makes tuch ebection o an inctrument by istrament basis. The elassilication is made on indlal recognition and is irevocable

I s ity nvesiment is not held {or trading, an wrecoverble election is made at il recogniion 1w measure o af Bir value thiough ather comprebensive meome wath oaly drvadend movme recogamed m the statement of
it aned Bosd

1 thie Company decades bo olassify an equity instrumeent a5 at FVTOCL then all B valoe changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, arc secognieed i the DT Theee i i recyehng of the amounts fram othes
comprehensnie incoms (0 statement of profit and ks, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cummvulative gain o boes willun cquily.
Bauiiy instroments included withan The FVITTL catcgory are messuncd of fuie valie with all changes recognized in the ststement of profin and loss

(e
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A Tinancial g4ser(or. where applicable. s pari of & finascial asset of part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derccogned (1o removed Trom the Company”s Tinancinl sutemend) when

{a) The rights to receive cash (ows from the assel have expired, of

ih) The Company has iransterned fis rights o recehae cash Mows from the aseet or has assumed an obligation o pay the reccived cagh Nows i fll withoart macerial delay 6o a thrd party under a “pass-through” aifangernent;
aid either:

{i} the Crrmpany has pumsfenesd substanizally all the rvks and revesrds of the asset, oF

(i) the Company his meither transfermed nar retaned substanbially all the ks and revmnds of e asset, bt has trmsferred contrl of the aeeet

Whien ihe Company has transferred its rights to recence cash fows from an aseet o hus entered i o pass-frough srangement, i evaluates if and 10 what exient il s retumed the risks and rewards of ownership, When if
hig neither Teansirred nor retained subsiantialhy: all of the rixks and rowards of the asset, por transferred contol of the asset, the Company contmucs to tocogiaee e Manstemed asset 15 the extent of the Company™s soatinuing

ivolvement. In fhat case, the Company also recognises an essociated Hability. The transferrod asser and the axocinted linbifity are messured on a basis that reflects the rights and obtigations thal the Commpany his rotamed
it snvidvement that takes the ferm of o guamatee sver ihe trmmfered st i mveasined o the lower of the arigimal carryving amount of the resct and Ghe maxinin sl of cenideration that the Compamy could be
tequined to repay

Weine 3

Am entity shall dsectly reduce the gross carrying amount of & Financml Asset when thi entity his no remsonahle expectstirn afrecovering o financial assel in 38 enfirey of for a parfion fhereal

o {Gadecial

The Company spphcs cxpecied eeedit losses (ECLY moded Tor measarement and recogrition of mnpmrment kv on the foflovang finun il sssels:

(#) Financial agsets meaznred ol pmaorined cost

ib) Finnncial assets measured an fair valee through other compreheniive income (FYVTOCT)

Eupectod Crodit Losses e measuned throwgh enher 12 month BCL o lifetime BCL wd if is msvessed as folkaing:

Fuir ecognition of impairment 1os3 on finencil ssvets, the Company determines it wivether there has been o signficant merease m the crodit rmk sinee mitial recogasion. 1 credit rhik b nof imrcaed significaatly, 13-

msnith ECL b aeed 1 provide for impairment bss. However, if eredit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, o the subsequent penod, credil guality of the instiument mproves. such that thore is oo longer s
significant incresse in crodst risk dince infial necognition, then the entify reveris 1o recognising impairment loss sbowmnce based on | 2-monih ECL

Lifetime L ae the expected credit ksses resubting from all possible defaull events over the expocted life of a financial instrument: The | 2<month ECL s a portion of the hifiime ECL which revuliv from defilt cvents that
whe porssthle within 12 moniks after the reporting date.

The Compaiy fallavws “simplified appreach” for recognition of impammenl ks allswance on tade recevables

The application of simptifted approach does not require the Company 1o treck changes m crodit nsk Kather, it recogniees impairnient ks allowance based on Hietme ECLs o each reporfing date. vight from it initial
recomnilion.

The Company folbows & provision imatrix o determine impanment lose alimwance on the partfolio of rade recenvables. The provision marmi 15 based on s hisionical observed de fuult ranes over the expecied life of the irade
receivables and i adjrsted for farward laoking catimales At every repoming date, the historical observed defaull ries are updated and changes in the forwasd lnoking esumates are analysed

Fot assessing increase in crodid risk and impainment boss, the Compaity combines Gnancial instrnments on the basas of sharcd credit sk charscteristics with the objective of fagilitating an analyzie that i decigned 10 enable
signilicand ingreases m credit rek to be dentified on o fimely basis.

Eimancinl lahililfcy
H financial liabilitics are recognised witially st far valoe and, in e case of lant and borrrwings and payables. nel of diceclly sitributable transaction costs,
¢ Compony's (inancial latnlitics iecliade leans and harrowings, frads and ofher payahles and dernvative lnonc il instrisments

r
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3st MARCH, 2020
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Xl

Finangiat Habilmics are classifiod as held for imding of they ane sncurmed for ihe purpose of reparchasing n the no torm . Thin category 8l50 ineludes derivative linancial mstuments entered ko by the Company that sne not

designated as hedping instruments in hedge relationships as defined by lod AS 109 Separsted embedded dermatives are abio ¢hissalied as held for trading unless they are dessgnated e éffectrve hedging agmumenty.
Liamng of boased on labilities held Bor trading are recogalsed m the statement of profil and loss,
Finamcial liahilities desgnated apon initial recognition st G value thiotgh profi or ks are deslgnated o5 soch ad the inttial date of recagnition, and only i the oriteria in led AS 109 are saticfhed
Lhi Loant and borrowings
Affiet initial recognition. interesi-bearing boans and borrowings are subsequently meastred of smartised cost using the cffective mterest rate (ETR) methodt, Gaing and losses are recognised bn satement of profi and loss when
th: Liahalities are derecognised as well a3 through the EIR amontisation process:
Amnrtreod cosi s caleulaied by taking o sccoant any dikcoant oF premitm on scquisilaon s foes or costs that sre o inlegeal pan of the FIR. The BIR amorisation = mcluded as firance costs im the staensat of polin end
forss,
¥ Eiimeinl Chismiilis Contract
Funnncinl guansnsee conleacts naved by the Company are Hwse contracts thit requine 8 payment 10 be mode to reimburse the balder Tor o loss it incurs beousss the specified deblor Tnils o make @ payment whea die o

accordance with the ferms of a debi mstmment. Fisancial guarmnies conlracts aie recognised inftially as a lability at fir valoe. sdjusted Tor transastion coges that are direetly anributable to the rsusnce of the guasanies
Subequenily, the lahility b measured at the higher of the amouni of loss allowance delermincd  per mpairment requiremends of Tnd AS 109 asd the anwun? fecognised less cuntilative anwrtisaion

Derecognition

A financial Lty i derccogniied when tie ohligation under e liabithty i discharged of cancelled oF expires. Wien an existing Braneial liability i= replaced by ancther from the came lender on substantiafly different rermis,
or the verms of an existmg habilify are substantially modificd, sech an exchange o madificaten w cated &4 Hie derecogniion of the otiginal lahility and the reengnitinn of a new linhitin. The difference in the respective
garrying amounts 5 recognreed in the Satement of profit and fose

Difsciting of fngnciyl insfruments

Fanancal astets and Tinancinl labililics ané 07Fsed and the nel amamn 1% reponed 1n the halance shaet 11 there 1w a currently enforceable kegad right w offeel the recognised mmommts and hens s an intenfiom fo sciilc on g acl
bacr, 1o realize the assets and seffle the babilibes simoltanconshy

Cash and cush quivalents
ol sl cash equivalent in ibhic badance shcel comprises cash i hamd. cash at banks and shor-term depasits with an origingl matirty of three mombs of kess, which are subjeet o an waignificant risk of changes i valoe

For the purpose of (he siatement of cash (lows, cash and cash cquivalents contist of eash in liand. cash &l hanks and shorr-term depogits, 55 delined abave, nel of putstanding hank averdeatls, if any. a< they wre considered an
indegral part of the caxh munaygement

Eorcifn carrency Transscliong
The Company’s linancial stotements are presented in Indlan Rupee (Re, ) which is also Company's functional currency
Forcign currency transactsns wre recorded on malial recogrition in the funcional currency, nsing the exchanpe rares prevailing an the date of mansacion. Al eoch balance sheel daie. Foreign correney monelary Hems arc

reponied using the clsing exchange rate, Exchange rate differcnces. thar anse on settloment of moneiany siems or on imastalmg, of monctany e ot eich balimos theet reportong dabe af Ihe chosing rats are recognised a5

ICAME OF expense m Ihe penod in which they snse except exchange difference on monerary inems thar qualify as o hedging wiroment in » cash flow hedge sre rocognived mfinlly m OC1 o ihe extent the hedge o effective

Nom-monetary v which are carried al historical cost denominsied in a foreign currency are e exchange eades prevailing st the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items mexonred #t fair value in 8 foreign
cortency are reported weing the exchange rates prevailing al the date when fair valuc i
Whel & gaiR of a5 0N MaB-MORCIAN: ems i3 recognmed in OCHamy exchange component q:grpnr
enchange component of that gaimfoss shall be recognised in Profit / Loss

be recognised m OCL, comversely when o gam or
f‘ﬁ’f “‘H.‘,
é
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NOTES T0 THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3151 MARCIH, 2020

311 Fair Vatee Measuremonts
The Commpemy measirecs il instriments. such ad, derfvatives ete al falr value at sach halance sheet dute.
Fair valoe is the price that would be roccived 10 sell an asset or paid to tramsler a liability in an orderly. transaction: between markel participants al the measurensent date. The fair value measurement 1o hased on the
presempton iial the franaction bo sell The mset of tamsler the liabiliny takes place either;
(&) in the principal market for the seoef or lability, o
(b In the abscice of & prmeipal market i the most advantageous market for the assel or linbilin
The principal of the most advanlageous market miist be accessible by the Company’
The fair vatse of an asse or a Habiliey 15 mecasured nsing the assumptions thai markel participants wookl e when pricing the assel of lability, assuming that market participants act in et ecoponug best inleres)

A e vahie messirement of & nonslinancial issel Likes info Bocount a markel parmicinant s ahility 1o generale economic benefis by wing the s in 1t highest and best ome or by sellag st io ancther markcl paricipant thid
wousld use the aeeey i s highest and bost use,

The Company wsed vsluation fechnifies that are appropriate in the circumastances and for which sulficiem datn sre avarlable o measine Frir valee, maximiting the use of relevant ahservable mpuss and mimmising U e of
unobservable inpats,

All ssets and linhilities for which fuir vabue i messured or disclosed in the fimuncial sistemenis are categrrmed within the B valisc hicrarchy, désaribad a5 Tolipws, bazid tn the kst kevel inga that bs significant e the fai
wale incasurcment aa a whinke:

bevel | — Qauted (unadpssied | market prices m active markets for identicsl assets or lnhiliies

Loved 2 — Valathon techniques fur which the lawest bovel inpui that b sigusiiant o e Gy vidie measurement & direstly or indirectly ohscnable

Level 3 — Waluation techniques tar which the fowest level inpau that i signaficant 1o the fair vahue measunomcol i amobsgrvable

For assets and lisbilitics that are recagnised in the finaacial statements an & recurring basis. the Company determines whether transfiers have oceirned between Jevels in the hicrarchy by re-avissing calegorisation (hased on
the owest level inpat taad Is gignificant 1o the fir valise measurement as a whisle) at the end of cach reporing perwed

Fist the purpasie of G valne disclommres. the Company has deermined chisses of asseis and habilities on the hasis ol the natare. charcicrntics and risks of the a4s0t of Hability and the level of ihe fam vadue bierarchy ax
explamed above

311 Inventories
Rew materials including harvesicd tea leaves, produced from own pardens are ipeasured at lower of cost and pet realicable valise. Cogt being the fair wirloe bess wast 1o sell bl the point of harved of 12 leaves
Raw maitiials of purchased tea leaves, Siorer aid Spare parid and Finihed Goods are <isted a8 iomwer of cost and net realizable vabse In case of Siores & Spane Paris, Cosi s dotermmned using Weighted Average Ciosl
re thisd anhu:l;gmddmmmﬂ:mmmnn.dn-lhu-nurinr.u-mﬂfwiminpnpdn:{nmmr’ﬂwth:irmrﬂhcn:im=|m.lnw.li1iundeﬁdcdfnmﬂmclwlumnu:pm¢MNhrmmmdhhnqm;
rhe mvenmnries i their prescot canom and congdilion
Siock of Traded Cioods are valheed 2t Cost.
Mt realisibhe valoe i5 the esimated selling price m (he ordinary eourse of basiness, bess the esumated costs of completion and the estimaled costs necessary to make the sak

313 Binlogical Assets
Tes beaves growing on wra buches are messored ar fur vahoe less cost to sell wih changes m e vakue recogrmed in Statement of profit and lods.

31 Emplovee Benefite
Short Term Emplovee Bencfily
Shor term employee benefits are expensed as the relied vervice is provided, A Tiability is recognised for the amount expected to be setiled whally before mweive manths after the year and, if the Company has a present fegal

1‘; or canstroctive abligatisn o pay this amoini 22 a resull of pasi service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimpled reliably ll:m%mgﬁmml leave V}ﬁr— P
' Post Emplovment Bencflis FaRdsy S NG x
i) — =

o

% ,” -\

! Retirermient benefits in the form of contribiiion to Provident fund are defined contribuiion plans. The contribuiions are charged o the statemont ol lﬂupu- 3 H‘MMMMW pﬁql-;' &-:mug,:

&mmm}wmmmuhﬂim has no frther ahiigation bevond s monthly contribution, r——ﬂl i Wi 1'3-
1'*-*}*-\ @ B

ﬂl——s"’// : =
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DARJEELING ORGANIC TEA ESTATES PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315t MARCH, 2020

L5

LR TS

17

Dcfingd beoclit plans,

The Company operaics delined benefi plan vie, prafusty, The coxte of providing bene il under this plan sre delormined on the hasii of aciusmal valoaison af cach yepr-cnd. Actussal viliatsn B carfeed dal for The jlad iming
the progecied wnin oredel method,

Delined benefit goats are comprised ol

o ) servece cost (including corent cervice cost, pasT sorvice cost, as well as gains and losses on camallmms and somiemipne

I} Mt bplerent espatme oF ingame, sl

€} Ke-measnrement,

The Company present the firit twvo componcits of defined bemefit costy in profit of keis o the Hine fem Emplovee benefits expense’. Comulment gaind and bedscs ane accotunted for as past servece costs. Resmaisnrement of
et defined benefit iability asset pertaining mo gratwity comprise scnmria] gains kossos (Lo chianges m the prosent vailne resulting from expanence adjustments and effects of changes i schuarial assemphions) smd 15 reflected
immedingly in the batance sheet with o charge of eredit recognised in other comprebéemsive income in the period i which they oeour. Remeasurement recogniied ia oiher comprehenane mcome 18 reflecied immediatcly in
teliised eamings and is nof reclaasifiol o peallf or lees

Horrowing Coxt

amawing coste that are dirscih attributable 1o the asquisition, constrectian or production of an assed thay necessarily ke a subxaniisl period of time o gel raady for it imtemded e or sale are capitalised a5 pan of the con
ol the seypective avsel, All ofher borrowing cofts pro expensed in tic period i whech it s ncirmoed

Bumrewing costs inclode tnterest expense cakoulated usmg the ¢ffective inferest rate method as described i lnd AS 109- Financial Insioumens, lnonge chavges in espegt of Nnamce leaes are recogninsd in scoonfance with
Ind A5 17- Leases and exchange differences ansmg Trom fogeign cameney bomovings @ the extent that they wre regurded as an adjustment to iierest costs

Gevernment Granty

Giovernment graots and subsidics are recognited af Fakr Valhic When Haere i reasonshle asvucance that the Company will comply with the conditions afiached lo thein and the graste/sibidy will be received. When the grant
or swhindy from the Ciovernment relates to revenne, i sccroed and shown as ingome in the perod n whach the aght o recenee grami i cxtablishod meiﬁhhmdwhnfmm
plant ind cquipment afc included in non commeni lahilitics ay defermed govermment grant and are credited to prndlf o logs on & straighi-line base aver the expected lives of the relsiod asscly and presenied within other
U3perating incame.

Lugome Taves

|niume ik cxpense feprosents the sum of the iax curently. payable and defered tx, 1 is recognked by statemend of profil and lode except 16 he cuient that il wlates to s bosiness combimation, of idoms recogniscd ducctly) n
ety or i ather comprehensive ncome

Current Tax.

Curretd ingome 15x reprosents the tix camently payable on the mxahle inoome for the yvear and any scjusiment to the iy in respeet of the previss years. (1 iy messored nsing @ raes snsced of sulsiantively enaoed s ihe
reporting datd

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax 5 previded wstng the balance shesl approach on lemposary differences 0 the reporting daie between the ax bases ol assets and labilines and thesr carmying ameents for Tmancnl repming purpess ot the
reporting date.

The carrving amoient of defiorrad tax assets b reviewed al each reporting dote and redoced 1o the extent that i b no kenger probable that sefficien scable profin will be avadlable w0 allow all or pan of the deferred ws ass i

be wiilised. Unrecognised diefiormed tax assels are reassedeed ai each repoeing date and sre recogniced bo ibe extent thad il has bocome probable thad fuiise tecoble profits will allow the defered Tad sttt lo be recowered
Dheferred tax assets and fabilings are measured 35 the mx rates thay are expected o apply in the vear whon the asset i realised ar the lasbiiiny 12 senled, basod on mx maes | snd 1ax Tews ) fhar have been enacied or subsiantively
enacied al the reporimg date.
Mmdm“qmmﬂumﬁmﬂdmﬁhmﬁu%mumwmﬁnwummmmI]trmmdmnmmmnpﬂmqu
o directhy m eguity. I.-'I.--r “E AW
fierred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if: (._r K J—PIH
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3151 MARCH. 2020

Az

Current mnd deferred tax i recogritsed in Uhe staterent of profic and loss, cxcept 1o the extent that it relates i itema recognised in the Dther Comgueliensive Ineome of dimectly in equity. (o this caie, e is also recognized in

ather comprehensive incomie or directly in eguity, respeciively
Minnum Alemate Tax credit i recognised a5 deferred ta% psser onky when and o the <xient there iz convincing evidence that the Company will pay pormal income ax durmg the specilied period  Such assel i reviewed

each haianice theet dite wod the carving amotnt of MAT credic asset is wrimen down 1 fhe 2xtent thire 15 no longer 8 convineing evidence to the effect that the Compary will pay sormal tax during the specificd period,

Provisions are mecognised when ihe Company has o present ohhigation (kpal or constractive ) as a senill of & past event, it i probable thal wn setllow of resources embadvng cconomie bemefits will be rewprired 1o settle the
obligation and a reliable csumaie can be made of the amoueni ol the obligition, When the Company exprets some on all oF 6 jtovision to be reimboricd, the reimbursement i tosopniscd a8 5 sepasate aaset, but anly when the
reinbursement 5 viemally cormam. The expense relafing o a provision i prescrod (n the strdercid of profil sod ki net of any ieiablrsemen

I the efect of Fe finie valise of money i€ material, provisinns are dizcounted psing 8 curment pre-tax rate that refiects, when appropeiate. the rishs specific i the Habiliy, When discounimg is used. the mercase in the provizion
dise o the passape of thne is recagnised as a Tinance cost.

Contingenl Eiahiitics aid Asscts

MwLuWk-mmWﬁm&mumdmm in the nobes. Contingent Assets ire ol teoognised but disciosed in the financial statements when economic inflow 1= probable,

Earnings per Sharg

Rasic camings per sharc is caboulaicd by dividiong ihe nci prodil or loss For the period after deducting wey alirbitable tax Bweess for the perad by the weighted average number of equity shares owstanding during the perrsd.
For the parpess of ciledating diluted samings per share, the et profil or kiss Tor ihe peniod altrsbutable o cguily shareliolilers and the welghtad average nunber of shaces aurtianding during e peried i adusted fie the
effecte of all dilutive potential equity shares,

Current ind Mnncurrent Classification

Tho Company pregcnts asscts and lmbihisci m fhe balanee shoct based on curment! non curtent <lessilicalion

A saset s curren when;

« 10 5 expected 1o be realised or imended

« 1 1= beld pevmndy: for the purposc of tradmg,

-1t = expected 1 be reatived within iwelve months afier The reporring peniasd,

= It i cauth or e eguvalents unless nestrscied from besng exchanged or wsed o seiile & lability for o) least feglve momtls alter the reparting period
Al ather sl ane clussilied ag non-cannenl

A liabihey i currend when
-1t i expecied 1o be gentled i pormal
= 1t 55 held primanly, for the pamose of imding,

= It o5 due o be cetthed within rwelve
O
-Th‘uumun:nndllmlr'hwhhkﬂmﬂhlﬂlﬁwhﬂmmmw_ﬁmrﬂ.
All wthser tiabilities are classified as non-current. //@,‘r,«-— ;'.--..;
fa hiiﬂ T
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR TIE YEAR ENDED 315t MARCH, 2070

3.21 Bysipcss Compination
Baitinces combinations, if any, S secounted fir uding the scquitition scoounting method au af the dase of the sequisithon. which is the date ar which coneml is transterred (o the Compamy The consideratinn tmnsferned i the
aoquisition and ibe identifiohlc atects acquircd and lashilities snmed src recognived 31 Bir valees on their accuitition date. Goodwill i initially meastircd @l cost, being the excess of the aggicgate of the conskleration
transferred and thye amoom recognised For nom=coniredlng micreits, and amy previows mberest beld, over the net wenfilinble aswcts acquired and Tmbafitics avsuned TF the Goodwill compiated &1 per INTHAS 103 b ncgalive, the
acquirer noeds w reassess the Mentificatson and mezsurement of the acquiree’s identifiable mseis, labilites and comingent labilities and the messurement of the cost of combmation. I negatie poodwill remains, this i
WMilu_mdu'r.:}yiliﬂuﬂmmhhdi.:qqulyul'.,'pp.l,ﬂ.ln:rw,Tlu:L'nm'memﬂmeMﬁﬂdhmmmmmMﬂmum
wesumed, The Chmpany recognises any nof-contralling intercsd in the scqeired entity on an scquitition-by-acquisition basis either sl fair vahic or al the non-controlling interests proportionate thare of the aoquered entity's net
ideniifiable agscls. Condideration trams Rorred docs rod mclude smounts related B selllemenl of preagsisting relalionships, Such smoents are recopnised in the Sintement of Frafil and Lozs

Teansaction cost are expensed a3 incarmed, olber Than fhode incurmed I relation i the e of debt or equity securiiies. Anv coptmaent congideration payable i messured af fair vabie o the scquizition date. Subtequeni
changes an the Bar vaiie of condingenl conssderalion arc iecogmscd i the stalement of Proli and Loss

1M there b wn acquistion of s atset of a groop of ascets that does nod constnae & husness. In such cages the Compamy chall iennify and recogrise the mdnadual denafiable agscw soguerod (mchudmg those assers thar meer
ihe definiting of, amd eecogrition criteria for, infangible nusets in Ind AS 38, Inmngible Assern) and Hahifitkes assumed. The cast of the grosp chall be aliocated s ihe individual idenfifable aopgts and Jiabilities on the basis of
iheir relative Fuir valies o the date of porchadse Siuch a transaction of event doss nof give rise la goodwill

1.13 Revearrh & Nievclopment:

Revenoe expenditure on Research wd Development s recopnised o5 a clarge inhe Suement Profit and Loss, Capital expensdinire on aesers soquired for Rescarch and Devclopmend s added o Froperty, Plant and
Equigsment. il sy

L.
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NOTES TO THE FINAKCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31x MARCTL 2020 iln Re)
idy  Advanoe paid o suppliers
il Unsecored, considened good 1000637 268,70 154
(i) Unsecursd, considened doubtfil 00 267 .
Less Provizion (o Doishifol Advance Given to Supplicrs {10 267} #
() Submdy Roocrahic®® 1173105 22.73,008
i Malance wrib gavernimcint aulbadity 71544 12,58 004
59,1575 30l 3L LAY
Thete ore B sdviiess 6 directrs orather officers of The Company or sy of them either severally or jointhy with sey other persons of advimces to lims o peivaic companies respectively in whichany duector 1 3 permned of & diecios
ar s member

* Halange wilh gavernment department (KGST) unatjarted since Lest fcual vear
=& Subwidy recelvahle from Tea Hoard OF India sinog eafaer yoar

An'al Al
14, EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL (Refer Stafensent of Changes in Equiry § Jise Mareh, 220 3lak harch, 2019
Anthoreod Equity Shares
130000060 (300019, 13000000 (Ordmary Eginty Shares of R4 10 each 13, 0, O 13,00, IR
B0 | 5103 19, 60,000,) Class A Equity Shares of Ba. 10 cach 51,10 15, 00 ()
GRNED A003 19 99.999) Class B Bquity Sharex of Ba 10 coch 9,549,99() /5 )
110, OO0 30 O A8 1 16.00,000) s © Bqueity Shares ol R 105 eacl 1160, MDD 1§ 60,00 000
TT00,000 131 03,15 77000000 Tnaestor Fguity Shares of Rs. V(- cach T T0,0{,000 7,70, 0
27 ol 30 GE 19 27 00,000 Class D BEquiny Shares of Be. 10 ench 1,700,061, 00 3,70, 00 D00
7500000 731 0319 25 00,0001 Clads E Eauity Sharesol Rx 10 cach 150,08, 000 230,00, 000
Total 3765,59,990 A7,65 0 90
fawiseil, Sudmeribed and Fully Pakd Up Rauity Shares
f) G 30 (30 00 19, 51 98, 756) Ordinary Pguity Shares of R, 11 cach 5,19,57,590 u,19,87.590
TohSE33 (3108 19 T665.6330 Invenor Equuty Shares of e 10 cach 15, 56.330 T8, 56000
L4807 1210009, S4857) Class B Pty Shares of Bx. 10 cach T AEHTO 4§ AR RTD
SEAST M0 0%, 51457 Cless A Figaity Shases of Re 10 cach AR S 14570
102 TS L0 0N 19, 116,22, 775) Class © Fauiry Shares of K1 10 cech 10,623,217, 750 10,62,27,750
24,79 6494 (30 03,19 25,240 459) Ordinary Equity Shares of Bz 10 each 1.52.06,590 25286 590
23R4 31,0019, 73 847 Classs B Bty Shates of Re 10 cach 138420 138470
EIAZ0 L0319 3552620, ) Cles E Egquny Shares of Bz 10 cach 3636, 200 23826, 200
P32 AT T 9 102,190, Clam D Equity Shaies of Bz 10 gich 1431700 13.20.700
larued. Subscribed and Partly Paid up Kguity Shans
20450030 03 19 22 20.4%0) Class D Egurly Shores of Ra 10 cach, paid up Be 1 each L4510 2120450
Tamul 1 BEIRAT0 JLASIE AT
{a] Wectuciliafion of e member of oquity shapes cumsaandig a1 ihe beginming mnd of the cnd of the regerting period
| As a1 3151 Alarch 2020 At 3 it Mlasch 2019
Farticniamn -
N, of Shares Amvunt (He) Mo of Shades Amoun] (R )
El'.m\ xmwmqu the beganning of the vear (inchading Onfinary, Tavesior anad Class & B C, [1LE) 24052 257 32,35, 1% 470 190433946 170448010
the year —— = .
Mmmwu i Lid o 2 = - 2
Equity Shares camvenied from CCPS t fully paid up shares P e } SHO8USE
Feguity Shares putetanding at the cod of the year =7 ey JdLsz2e2

=TT |
a1 KU iy
1=\ )
L"\\L':-\..J:-_:‘\_‘__ 1 " ;..':l.'
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KOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315t MARCH, 2020 (n Rs )

i) Reconcilatihs of the mamber of compulsarily convertible preference shares ouisiunding i ihe begiuning and ai ihe erd of the reporiing pericd

Pa As at 315t March 2020 As at 316l March 2018
rriculnrs Na. of Shares Aot (R Na. of Shases [ Amcenirs) |
converhible preference shores al ihg beginming of the - - SHA.95 || E T
L ompulsonly convertible preference shanss isswed during the year (CCP'S) - - S | -
Compuisanily canvertible preference shares convened 1o fully pad up Fagty sharos |} Rasis) (58085551 (580,89 500
(Compulsonly sonveruble peeerence shares outstanding ot the end of the veas Z - - :

{cl Terms Rights nitached io Equily Shanes
The Coinpany his dximed the Tollobing clisscd oF cquily shanes having o pas value of R 10 per share, namely

{1 Clazs A Shares skall mesn the fully paid equity shares roed by the Compamy fo ARP aid Duvton purssast ki ibe Find Investment Agreensent which shall on snd from the Closing Date. rank pani pasm
with the {irdinary Shares in retpectof all sighis and benefits, inclading. bt nod linvited to, econanmic ights. vanng qighi, doidends. misck splits, bones and or pghts foaunces

i Clage B Shares shall meen the sgquity shanes of the Company sssund by the Company to the Promoters pursaant o ihe Pird nvestment Agreement whach ase fully pokl Up on the Effeotwve Dabe and shall o b fron the Dlosng Date
rank pari passy with the Orndinery Shares i recpect of afl nghis und benefite. nchisling, Bl nol limited 1o, cosnanmic nghts, visting rights. dividends. Sock sphirs, bonuas and-or rghis 155manes

{oih Clatd © Shares shall mesn e ety thanes of (he Company has Been naed b the Fxmnng Investies paesuant w the Second Investmen Agreonsnt snd shall inchude the Peacack Investog Coaversion Sharcs, Oikncredst Conversion
Shares and Bostaanes Conversion Shares Bas be isxued vpon conversion of the Peacock Tavestons CUPS, Oikocnedit CUPS and Bostaurus COPS an the Conversion Dite and the Peacock Investors Clads O Shares, i any, consmmbing
& vty chas of Shares and sk with the Crdinary Shares in respect of all ights and benelit. inclding, bat nad limsted ho. econamic tghts voting righes, dividands, sieck splite. homes and'ar nglts peances.

{iv) Clags D Shans hall mean 1 separate ¢lass of partby paid equity shares isrved (o the Promooees pursumat 80 ihe Socond Investment Agrecment af 4 promiuem of B4 307 91 Rispees Twi Fundied Sevet and Nincly One Paka) per shase,
compounded ar the ety of ¥ per unum fromi the Clesing dat ander ihe Socond lavestment Agreesment. and rankitg with the Ordinary Shates i respect of all nghis and Benelis, inchisdang, hat ot levbed 19, ecanamie rights
voting nights. dividends, shock splits. bonus andier rights tsesances. 1 32,170 (e Handoed Thinty Two Thoteeand One Hundred and Seventy) Class D Shares are fully peid wp a5 on the B ffecting Dake

(v} Chaee F Shores vhall meon @ scpambe claca of parly poid equify Shires 152 1 The Promaters purmiant to the Saeond investant Agreemant o2 prce of Bx 217 SlRepees Tun Humdsed Sevomeen and Minety One Favsa) per share
which arg Talty paid up as on the Hifiscrive Pate and rmnk  with the Crdmary Shares in respest of all rights and berefis, including. bt sol limited i, cenmamic rights. voting nights, dindends, sinck rplits. bonus andfor nghte
FRELAROSL

Iwi Tnvestor Shares shall mean separste class of equity shines iceued by the Company o Duion and AP marssnd b the Frst Investment Ageeement which shall o and fram the Closnng Dk sl with the Ondinoey Shates in fespect of
all rights and benefits, inchidizg. but nof lmited . connonine rights. vitsisg g, dividends, Sk splaa bosi aslbor iphts lsuances withaist any sdditmnal rights nad bengfils.

(vity Ovdimury Shaves shall o il osdinary egquity sbanes of the Compariy having 2 face valic of Ra 10 (Rsposs o ondy)
i) The Company aceroes dividesd 1n Tndean Rupees 1o the CCPS @3 *s ol dane of conversion. (Dhaclogure pertaims 1o Previous FY 2018 0%)

(i) Terms! Fight artiched 1o Compulanrily Convertible Frefereace Shares which got converied io equity in proviows fnancial year 108179

11} During the Fisangiol Year 31617, the Campam: reeied 2% Conpulionly Convertible Preforence Shanes (CCPS ) having & foce value of Rs 10 (Rupees Ten) per CCPS, ot o premmm af e 251,75 (Ropees Two Hundred and Fifry
Oime:and Seventy Five Parsa) por OCPS. The total valie of cackh CTPS w Re 261 75 (Rupees Twa | lundred and Sisty One and Soveniy Five Paisa)

{16} This imvestment wat ceacied s the hasy of the Invesiment Agrecent dated fith December 2016 and the dewils of ke lnvesiors, Invesiment Amaunt and the Namber of CCPS ismed i ax por the able beluw

N lewresery
5, N Name of the bavretry twveieery | | Jovibient
LTS Amaani [is R
Lkt
i Osreiit Ecammakcsl Devilegmeeni Couperniie Sockdy LA 1,10 %8s 1,700
3 Unitis Agricwlinral Lind Fand > FETRrE] 09 i
1 [ 16,1119 3603
i Artava Al ] 3,804
5 ALTWA Heldimg GmbH 8 153,001 1474
s TS Trouhambe ¥ 431704 1104 | »
T Efiltictg Fvlens 280349 134 |
[ Rosinaruy Numimees Fry Lid 7 59 =7 BE
it S8,08, 56 15,205 |
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR TIE YEAR ENDED st MARCH. 2030

i} The Satrcroption CUFS camed o preferentsl night 10 meceive dividend ol the rabe of 2 % (fwi per cent) per annum on the face value of such Subscripnon COPS. The said nght o dividend shall be cumulaove asd shall accnue from
year i year whether or nat pakl, and ncensed dividends shall be paid in full (ogeiher with dividends accrued from prior years) prior ioand in preferenced fo any dividend or distribution payable upen Shares of dny other cluss or seriey
im the same financiad year. T addition 1o 1he Tied dividend o mentioned aloresaid, (he Subscnpion COPS are also be entitled to dividend af the same Tate 05 is declaned by the Board (and spprred by the Shacholders of the

Coampany ) i respect of the equity shares, an fhe face vakue of such Subscription CCPS

() Thring the yoar 2008-{4, 5509 956 0CFS swre converted fivni Cliss © Shanes i fhe ratio of 18 an 27 03,2019 which was due. for canvensuin an 02-02-201%

lielrration of Fuinghs 3t RN dis] ol g L oo DA e v 1 grverirhle Preferenee St il S

(vi The Company kas fiked the necovsary supporhing dociments and Forms b the Regstrae of Coemnpandes o the selevant mmbaofilies 1o execute and give effect o the gomvetoun

The Company received a fotal of R 1$308 Lakhs (Rupees One Hiandred Fifty Two Crores and Five Lakhsh thoaugh éssue of $ 805,958 (Frity Fight |akhs Fight Thousand Nine TTundeed and Fifty S CCPS 10 he investors The
precceds thiss recetved by the Company ware uhilized s repay the Ingdian Rank Dobee of B | 2608 Lakhbe { Rupees One Hundred and Twenoy Six Croces and Frght Lakhs Only) The nemmmning funes wese uniized to pay the

sccamulated Hank Inlerest and other operating and capital buatiérs parposes

ieh Dietails of Equbty sharchalders halding more than 3% chares in the Company

a1 It s gt 3131 March 1020 Ax i, 30n1 Margh, 2000

B T MM RN E RS I a. of Shares held e ol Hokiing No. of Shares held " of Holding
1_|Miotilal Makhanial Holdings vt Lid 29,7300 KE) REN 9
1 | Sarapad Vikas Limied el 36,43,280 145 3543150 1045 |
3| Ambootin Toa Exporis Privite Linuted (Esstwhile 1A Digmac Pt 110 Refer 1o Note N A1 19] 17t UN7 507 17 66,087 57
1| Stichbing Pentioeniandy Abp 105,97 452 4l | 08 57,452 WAL
% | Ahismys Tex Company Private Linied |E 41,79,480 11.99 41,79,480 1159
B |[Oikocredi Beumenscal Development Cogperalive Sotily 23,717,241 [XF] n77342 [EE

(i Apgregate aumber of bonus shares issoed and shases bought back during the period od five veurs mawed mtely preceding the reporting date: Mil
{iThe Unmguery has issued 33, 93656 Compubonly Canvernble Preferenoe Shanes (CCPS ) o Juse (40 2020 of face visloe R 10v- a8 4 premimm of Ri:15.17 cach. As per Board resolution dated [0t Apnil 2020, the CUPS shall carmy

yuleng fighis from the duse of allotment

15 OTHER EQUITY (Refer Statcrent of Changes in Equiry )
fup  SBecurity Premiom Reserve

This reserves g uscd ko rcoord the prommm on msuc of shares. The severve would be sl in sccondsncs solh the provissons of s A

Ax per Last Frnancial Statemen
Add; Currend Vear Treansfer {Equaty )
Total {5

i) Capiesf Redemption Heserve

A per Last Fanancial Sialement
Total ik

fey  Capital Rescrve

Az per Last Financdal Stalement
Less: Adpestment of Impsanmment Lass
Tonal (¢}

Aval ‘-'u al
1 31 m Manch, 006
00 EH, TR S8R TIOL
'SI!H,H..T],IEI 503 ER TI0N1
Avat s ar
Jint March, 2020 Jiex March, 2019
1 S50, e 1,530,000 D
A sl Axat
Jlwt March, 2020 $iut March, 2019
A ST 07 1.91.%1.07 407
{3,75,15,51.195) -
16,5,56.212 1915107407
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NOTES TO THE FINASCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR EXDED 31a MARCH, 2020

Dictuils of Terms of repayment of long 1orm borrowings

Long tevm boprowiegs
Secured

a8l Term Loans
= From Bank

L0 Bank Term Loan <1
U Bank Term Laan <%
U Bank Term Loan -Y1
UL Bank Term Lo -V
U0 Bank Term Loan -V
UL Baok Term Loan <%
1) Bank Torm Loan <X
1) Bank Torm Luan -X1
A a b bieed Bank Teoms | onn
Atlghubiod Bank Term Loan

Siaic Mank OF Indis

il B

Terma of Hepayment Marwrity Date Interest Mate
10 Yearly Tnstainuenty AT03-1019 J0.68%
7 Yearly Instalmenis 3032021 L2
7 Vearly Inginlimeniy 31037072 TG
T Vearly Insislnwnis 3-0-1023 [[IFETLY
T Vearly Instulmeents 31-00-1038 1O
7 Vearly Instalmenly F1-03-3023 T
7 Vearly Instalmcnis Al03-2034 [T
¥ Viearly Instulments 3J0h-2024 JLEE
24 Quarterly Instalments 2023 BRI %
M-l J1-04-2024 BR 1%
20 Qs rterty Ingtalment
after & mwnths from the date  35.93.00%§ o
of Forut disbursemenie

Suiesl The repayment will siart aftcr 2 years aficr fhe date of first disbarsements an follows: Firat Quarter B 70 Lakhy each, Subsequent Quarter R 94 Lakha each, Subiequent Quarter R 141 Lakhi each,

Sulmeqnent Quarter i 164 Lakhs Esch.

by Vahick Laan
HINEFE " Bmnk Ll
Kobik Makimdra Prime Lid
Andbre Bank

(i UCD BANE TERM LOws- LILILIV NV VLIVILVILECC 8 X

() ALLAHABAD BANK TERM LOAN

Rl STATE BANK OF DNIILA

FIFE BANK . KOTAK MAHINDRA PRIME LTD. ANDHARA HANE
) VEHICLE LOAN TOYATA FINANCTAL SERVICES INDIA LIMITED

LR AL 7052010 i
il M 07052010 fo51%
sl EMI Aaak-20 10.25%

Proeary Security= Secured by Hyppthecation of Tea crop, Plant & Machinery | Stoncs, Boak Debt & Modtgage of Ambditia TH
Monicviel TE, Mulloatas TE, Mosadakioles TE, Narbong TE. Sivitar TIZ Nagn TE, Happy Valley TE, Chengtong [k
Sepoyidhaotsh TE Collaleral Securimy- EMIT an abone (0TEs Pertonal & Corporate Guananbes

Primany Sccumity- Secured by hypathecaiion of Tea crop, Plani & Machinery | Slores, Book Debi & Monpsge of Clsmiden
Pt Bungmosok Cedai | Rangaroon & Pandam TE Collstenal Secortys= EM T oo abave 4TEL Personnl Guaranie:

Prrman: Scommitv= Secued by hypothecatios of Tea coop, Mant & Machinery , Stuns, Bk [ehs & Mangage of Aloshan Tea
Estale Callatenal Secarity- EMTI i shove | TES Parsonal (juaranies.
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BARIJEELING (MRGANIC TEA ESTATES FRIVATE MITED

Mode -+ Applicable rate of inferest ie 5% poa. (net) fived payable an half yearly basi
Fxpaare Falance a2 om 3 [-03-2020 including imerest companant i ushedged

FOR puaransced by Mr Sanjay Frakash Bansal,
i3 (i) ECE-11

Sanctiancd Amauni
11} Oipenang Helance

{it) ECH réeived in financisd year 19.20
{44} Toal repaymant masde i fEnanciml yesr 1920

i) Batance (i = 51h
(e

Amouni jin Eurg MifHon)

1300

133

153

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS POR THE YEAR ENDED J1at MARCH, 2020 s R |
Lsriurid
i) iy ECR-1 Ampant (im Ewrn Million)

Sancnaned Amouni 20 0
(1} Opering Balaics a8
(i) OB received in Sinancial year 14920 =
yitty Total repavment meude i fosscial yor 1920 .
{izi} Balanee (1 - 100 480
Repaynsent Schedule for ECR-|
Beppymeni Uafs Amoagl
| dith Dievemte 2031 2 5% af the outatanding principal smaunnd of b lian
14th Decembier 2077 256% of the pastanding principal amoond of 1 losn
| dth December 2023 S 28%% o the outatanding pondinal amsung of 4 laan
14t Degaaier 2024 & 6% of the outstamding pringijal semound of a loan
{ bl Dronmanleer 2074 £ B8 o the caftstambing primeijal ammant il g loai
T4 [ecensber 2026 12.5% of the cutstanding principal amount of 4 losn
Tdrh Decenben 20T 14 29 of the tutstanding princopal amaunt of & boan
1A Decomber 2028 16,674 of the vuztanding prncrpal grewnd of 5 bean
T4ih Dovomber 2029 20 il the watstanding principal amoumt of & iean
I4th Dacember 2030 35% i the ouzstanding, principal amount of 3 foan
Jdih Brecember 2031 SIP of the palstanding pnncipal amount of & loan
fdth December 2032 1P o the ousstanading prencipal smoaint of 2 haen
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(L8

(i
ihi

m:gm;mnxmmmnhtmn- MARCH, 2020 ihnRE§
Hepavmen) Schadule for ECR- 11
Bspavmenl Inte Amuaent
3 s Miarch M1 2 5%, of ihe wmistnrdzng prncipal amount of & loan
30 Mlarch 2024 1.58% of the outstanding prircrpel smewnt of o loon
st March 2023 £ 26% of the oulslanding principal smosid of & loas
3 st March 2026 §.30% of the outstanding principal amowni of a loan
T hlarch 2007 SA8% ol the oulstanding princapsl smourt o a loan

31wl Muech 2028 12 5% ol the vitstanding prmspal amownt of 8 o
Jist Masch 2039 14 39% af the owrsanding paincipal amount of & loan
It Masch 2630 1 67 of The outsandmg pnncipel amast of a laas
315t Mazch 203 1P ol the outstanding, princrpal amsund of 3 jaan
s Mngch 3032 25% of the outstandung prindipal amaunt of A laan
115t Mlarch 2033 0% of the outstandeng principal ameunt of 4 lodn
Alat Manch 2034 1R ol the sintstytindeng primcipal aneoanl oF & laas
Mote := Applicabile rate ol interest js 5% pon. (wet) fued payalide oo Rall yearly busin

Papomere Balance sy on 210520 mclsbmy microd oomposcal n ushodged
LR gecwned by way of marigege on Robanpur Tea Eslate and luithet Tén Catatet s Additonal Scconty (et matually dgreed between Lender and Borrower i winting)
FOH s guarsntood by Wi, Saajay Trakach fansal
Avat faal
LO%NG TERM PROVISIONS Iwi Murch, 2024 st Manch, 2019
{a}  Employre henclils .

(it - Gratuily 129125555 3,98, 1141
Taial J!.‘l!_il_gﬁ'lus_d-.__ 26618 141
ATl W ahuwison Tor detetmanstion of Gratury Haboliy has been done exeept 3 TH which we Dusded with LI Groep Ormody Scheme which will be socvanded fior on dewmsand from LIC)

Asal Az ar
DTHER XON CURRENT LIABILITIES Mg March, idn Al March, X119
Stamp Pty Payabbe 5749 £ TEAT
Mefemed Siatubory Fayneen 1.41.91,568 L2564 858
Tutal 2TH AT Db 53,5043 717
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A at As al
22, CUHRENT FINANCIAL LIAEILITIFS-OTHER Twl March. 2210 114 March, 2014
() Cuven] moturises of leng-larm dabie (Rafer Mote Ma. 16 ) FTAL ¥ RLF] 373232705
(b} Inberest pavakle on bamowings 11,83 12,791 .65 20 566
Talal STARGL115 439732271
{rcerdise Instalment . R047. 180 97302794
Orverdise Inlonesd 150468514 184,00, 187
Allahahsd Rank
Crvendise legtalmaent J AL AL FLERE ]
Orvepdoe Inteyest 4,03, 79,019 F0355. 568
thers B L0000 h133081 1
Seate Hamd O India
Uverdue lnsialment 120 L0 T 0O
Cviendus Interest 36, TR 300 1761 834
(ther 3,02 B0000 -
ECH
lmtesret et gl ot due A5 R0 042 1 s 935
Webuels Tasin
s 10,3003 -
ETARELLIE 4387522371

Imecress pavable o A llahabad Bank & Siabe Bank of 1adia at on 3103 2020 i outitanding till the daté of aode report, The acoonuml was nol hassillad ns NIPA, s tie Heserve Bank of Dds hael devlared oo on loan repayment

Dot £ 03 30060 1o 21 OR. 2020w view ol covid pandemic

A&l A sl
I OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES Flar March, 2020 3138 March, 2019
i3] Advance paymends leom coslomerd 10124000 SEKE R
b} Otk payables
i) Stamubory ducs (PP TDS. GST & Otheri * 28,80.52.827 133476376
i Salary, Wapes, Hons & Others T4.65,00.980 E 0408054
(i) Lishdmss for Senoces & Others (Ehectiedly, tent, ete) ** TEELIT _._!Pnz.ﬂ!.m
Tatal Hm_ A 1T D

* The company ki ¢laimed Re 17,22 045 wowards input of GST under reverse chage mechanism, This amannt 15 unpaid by the company 01l the sbate of amfit repan and s g shalt only be available S s off onky on payment

of the smd liabiilty

** The PF Commissianer of Siliger & Jamgun ke in prncipal spproved payment of outstanding PF contribatian | both emplayes and emploves comtnbatinn) 6 March™2020 m 72 nstatiments. fn Cheriden Purbal the comapny hax

obinsned sppreval foi payment of PF dises (emplayver coneribution) till Februen 2030 in 36 incalmente.

Asal Mg al
14 SHORT TERM PROVISIONS 315t March, 2020 st March, X009
(2} Employee benefits
Uy Cisalmily - .
Todal a B

s
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE VEAR ENDED 3 st MARCH, 1039

15, CURRENT TAX LIARILITIES

Income Tax {Hed of Papmant
Tuisl

6 REVENIE FROM OFERATIONS

{a) Sale of Froducts
(id | Balé of Products

Fribehind Uty

= Tea
= [ 4TI
= Enpuril

» Qphoca
= Dot
-.E_"m

by Diher Operating revenne
Sale of Servicos & Accessodnid

Toiul

1. OTIHER INCOME

) Inlerest mcome

- Imerens an Fred Depeiia

- Dby
(b1 Compensation Received
o} Miscelianeous Incoms
1d)  Porcign Currency Flisctusuion Guin{Met)
(e} Charges in fair value of obogeal assets
N Leakalisbes written back

Taal

M CHANGES TN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS & STORES & SPARES

in)  Seocks ai the begingarg of the year
Fimrehe d goods
Stock af Stones
(M) Late St0cks & the end of the voar
Finighed goods
Stock of Stares
Taial

[

(In Eta §
Avan As ol
J14f March, 200 3882 March, 2015
N L 142,53, 941

142,51, 148 142,33 641

For The Year Ended Fesf The Yewr Ended
Fwil March, 2020 304t Magch, 2009
i, 33 A0,005 1,57 84,01 491
308,17, B -
16,948,234 46,9526, 150
TTANS 1417878
1638,19% 10 803
1,079,55,45.991 20495 401874
For The Year Ended For The Yeur Ended
J191 Murch, 2016 11w March, X148
LET.7TD 175,373
£0,085 30,108
W 993,719
- 1 58,49 9%1
= 954 136
ASEIN. i
16,34,764 210,234,593
For The Year Ended Far The Year Ended
Alan Sarch, 24020 Jia March 2019
A58 S0,072 39107714
L0 8T 600 25015031
FERERLE J5EL 30002
1,06, 87,643
(847, 14,000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3 ist MARCH. 2000 iln K3 )
0, OTHERS
{ii Ren 194,13 000 28042 400
(i} Lease Rent 15,1200 &) 56 a8
{mn) Rades and Taxes, exchmdivg Boxes on ioorme A155 nan
e} Insuamece 472,584 33597 687
{vi Hank Charges 23,5750 A
w1} Cooselishon and Advisary Changes LISIT,303 2R5 14615
i{win) Dabe Fecs-Tde - LA 2651 645
{wiit) Tds=Shon Dedisction IR 65,795 41033
{ix) Irsdmmenble GST S0, 14 -
i) Foscign Corrency Plisciuatmmn Loss i Neid 2.72,75.068 =
Sub Totnl (d) 15,15 40,885 TAREIAT)
E_MISCELLANELIS EXPENSES
T Mhedor Vibichs Expenss 6864527 34470
k) Travelhing and Convevames Fxpersss LS4k, 256 13748753
(1) Stamps Postage and Telegtoni: ianma 4L
Ul Prntnig & Stalionoey i2,72,198 16,87 161
iv) Membendip & Silncnpion 4050742 el Wil
vl Telephose and Tekex 186,739 14,24 241
{vm} iy Miscellaneous expenses Z19684L7 | 4215 252
(v b Thimecion Feos 1581333 0 (M
[wiih Chasmmem Feeo 21,10, B 2 03
irzi Sponsorship Fegs = L R
ixh ovrsions for Doobiful Thehis 5 TGN B
(il Provigion for Doebtful Capital Advances 21,5923 -
(xif) Provision for Doubtlul Othoe Mom €urrcai Advances 19,05, 78573 .
st Provision for Doybiful Advance Goven in Sapphers 10, 26T -
(nivh Provison for Boultll Other Current Advances 30,908,775 .
15wl Lo due 1o Quality Rejection 10,640, THE -
(vl Loss On Sale OF Fixed Arsois 1,52 MR 92 AT
Sub Totsl 12) 153,30, 04,014 AL H 1T
Tatal fatlterdie) 1,84, 24,48 851 ISATI T8

For The Vear Ended For Thee Yomr Faded

A EXCEFTIONAL ITEMS Mse March 2018 At Manch 2019
Insurance Claim Rocerved K37 -
Impatement Lok [L.74,50,T4074) -

P v Ml L -

The Company: ka dane impatreent of Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangitde Assets (aller proviching the defpoociation b the extent of B, 6456615 Lakls, during e vear boved o vabination of Tea Gridens done by Moy, Vestsan
Chlobal Workplace Services Py Ld; n world rengwned vahser. The valuaton sp done was propomionasely allorascd to all heads ol Property, Plant & Egupment and Intangshle Asscts oo om 3103 2020 snd secomdimghy the excess of book
wvalue oves market value wan chorged s imparrndend. The Conpany had sn amont af Ba 3915107 Lakds i Capital Resene which wad transfemed from Revalostion Resena: af the time of Ind As trangitush. The o patiment load wis fird
aclprstend ety Cnpitel Resenve and excens was fecngnisad (n Statement of Profit amd Lass account

Ataresudl the company has charged un one (ine tmpalment loss of £ 2715074 Lakhs in the ’ﬁrﬂﬁ .HmaFgumlmumﬂw_iE?' AEm i iie fnamcis rewalis for il Nockal Yeal wisded
Vit March 3030 ' ' A\ T Al "
o p T =il o] e _‘-'-..{["
\:-"f'" L 7 S
A {:_-r
(=] | =

(e
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IARIEELING DRGANIC TEA ESTATES PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TOTHE FINANCIALSTATEMENTS FOH THE YEAR ENDED 318t MARCH. 2020 (i B |
Far The Year Ended For The Year Hnded
3L Income Tax 31 March, 2020 3w March, 2019
I mhrrﬁidhﬂ_w'udﬂniﬂrmﬂ; e prafit or bess during the year:
{8] Statemcnt of profil and loxs
{1} Corrend |somme Tax - 1878223
fn)  leedine Tax for Eatlicr Yests = =
i) Dieferred Tax expense’ (bendfil} A1L23 T, 13,00 151440412
(1,22,71.13,986) {14008 84 1R
b}  Diber Comprebensive Tncome
) Defermed Tax relsiod lo bcms recogmaod w0 dairm@ the year
- Hl:lm:pmnu.'{lnu‘lﬂjm remscisrenends of delinod bedclil plants ﬂ’.lﬁ'lgp
11 38.32.440) (3518319
Total [ust} {1,740 45.452) o 15 1. RI5, S0%]
For The Vear Ended For The Yeas Fnded
3% Other Comprehenvive Income S1en March, 030 31s March, 2009
i Jnems ther will ned be clissified o poofit and low
- Kememaremend pasn’ | losses) oo defised benefit plans
Creaed during v year (552,00, T14) (9043 500
i Tocomc tax relafang o nomes that will not be
clasniked to profis and begs
+ Rememuarement gaan { lowses) oo defined benefit plans
Creakid durmy the vear 1,48, 3040 25,065,319
Toest B TV T T 1)
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KOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE VEAR ENDED Jat MARCIL 2020

OTHER NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Conr....)

H  Lontingent kntnlitice & Lummitmenls JRs s Lakhs)

A

Anat Agal
ot Frovided fori- Mt Mareh, 2020 J it March, 20019

(2] Clains against te Company nol scknowledged as debis
- Beanand radied by fnllowing suthoriiies in dipuis:
(i) Senlement of Provident Fund dues arising out of PF relaced livgation (Happy Valley Tea Usiaic) i 78,00
Ly Ot s alermnd raied by Incoome Tax Authoritees 17.118.49 =

(Al M el 560 L LR LYY T e PETRAEIE o IR BIR 510 g o fpwe

1y T thse Adbibraton (AP 920 of 2016) berneen Cameral Fitee Deakers vt Limited and Banecting Orgeniz Tea Esmes Pyl Limoed with regards w Cleevinden Puibut Tea Fate, oo avmed wis gomred duted 2800 March 2008 The
awand rejected all cbamis of (aeneral Fibre Dealers Pvt Limited o claimant | of approximately B 300 Lakhs) and sl clims of the Dagjechng Crganie Tea Estutes Pyt Lumited (uf approcimately Bs 700 Lakks) s respandent The
Award further smecd ihat Gencral Fibre Deabers 1 Limitod s élammamt waill isdemmty Darjeclmg Organic Tea Estates Pl Limted s respondent. In the event Dinrjealing Crganic Tea Fantes Py | imated b abliped to pay any
amsunt o gy oF the third parfics now i occupaben of any porfon of the ica cilale. Crenetal Fibire Dealers Pul Limited has sulsegquently Ted o petition AP 384 af 2019 against e arbitration i Caltota Figh Court

2y An arbiiration proceedings wes concluded betwees Darjeeling Ovganie Tea Fetates Privale limmcd (ax Clamand) and Mational Insacaece Company Limsfod, wilh the arbitration sward declarod on | Tih of Aoguel 20200 This was
regarding & Thre inihe Ambootia Tea Factory in August 2014 for which the Insurance claim was stitked by NICL at a bower valo than claimed by DOTEFL The vendicl upbield the Claim Repori of the 1si Surveyor, who had
recommmcnded R 822 Lakle claim pavment to Marbecling Crpanic Tea Fstates Private lmited. Out of this, since the Company bad already received Rs S48 Liskhs as sétihemont pre- arbiration, Rs. 274 Lakb & Farthecs have o b=
praicd oy MICL Additicssally, MICL will have w pay T kienest (simple snterest) from Deeember 2017 (when ihe arbitration stared | to the dase of the mvard | Further, Metionol Inssrenee Company Limited will pay the Compuny
cosh of Arbiralion a¢ ascertained ta be Re 2899 lakha The averall receivabios on secount of the vendset 15 approcimately B3 350 Lakhs Mational insuranee Compony Limited exn appesl agning the vendict

Bank Guaranlce 26,96 2636

- 15763
EMher Advance g Far ptlﬂ'l] bastness porpaose 1663 En
Loan To Employee 49.87 4271
(Hher Advances - LIER 07
Imvesiment hiade
There are o mvetiments try The company NIL MIL
5 ies. G
Theere: is na securiry groen daring the year ML ML
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NOTES TO THE FISANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3ot MARCH, 2010

36 Dislovure g Corporate Sycinl Responsibility Expences

{m)  Rrief

The Cronpany docs not have sdeguate profil in the last Biree years henee o nd roguired to spead on CHE
In R Lakhs

Year Profiti{Loss)

2016-17 (2.042.17)

2 T-18 {24011.83)

J0] K19 11436

I:w:ngﬂ Profil  {Loss) 1.746 55}

b} Sinee the averape profit iz negutive (or the las) three yeors, the comgamy is ool regquired 12 spend on CSR in the vear 201520 Cirgrss, ampen | requeived bo be spens by the Company denng ihe year m permance o ihe provisions of
Scctinn 135 of the Companies Act. 2015 and rules made thereunder © Ra. Ml (FY fs, MNil)
{c}  Amoont spent dunmg the yoar 300020 & 201819 i5 abbwm under Dther Expenses m the Statement of Profil and Loss (Refer MNots Mo 315

(R I Lakhs)
Asmt Az ay
8l MNe. Earticulais 31t March, 2020 318t March, 2014
] Spent in Caih - -
(11 Yol fo Spend - -
Tatsl

47 Scheme ol Arrgasements
A Asa condmion precedent to the imvestment 1n 2% Compulsority Convertible Prefercnce Sharess by the Investors. bass the Investment Agreement dated 6™ [3ecember 2016, the Company has sequired twoe Tea Faintes wnd one booght
Teaf factony viz Hrithik Tea Extate situnted in Darjecting. Jamgurl 1'ea 1'state sinsated in Galaghat, Assam, and tamgnr Aooght Leaf Factory. stuated in Jamguers Tea Eoade sinated in Giedaghat, Assam diering the financial year
20186=17, 23 detabed bebow:-

Value un per
5 Mo | Masae of the Tea Estale & Addresa Approved Viliecr
THs lakhs)
Tumgin Tea Fatnte, POV Chalitg, Tha
1 Galagt 5 TS K00
Jamguri Bought Leaf Factory, PO, (abing,
1 T (rolaghat; Assam 130000
- Hruthik Tea Fezate, Dest. Daneeling, Wesn 100080
Eﬂﬂ 1L EHAL L

The considerstion towards the acquisition of the sbove mentioned 3 Tea Extates and | Pought Leat Factory was paid in kind trough conversion of parily paid up shares to folly wdurﬂum{m:hdmnlnmmhmurcm
[ Sharcs) of Rs 8440 Lakh< and the batance amount was throwgh liabilities ken over of Re 1560 Lakhs.

13 (i.lll,- vl
l BJE Q%i‘ ROL-| 1
."-.‘Elfhz_ ’ :--'-:.::"l
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30t MARCEH, 2020

312

o

The following partly paid Shares of the Company haid by the Fromaters have been made filly paid up during Financial Year 200%-17, porsvani fo the contribatin m ind by the Promaters of the jeas eciates o detailad in ahove

L “Sumber of Price Per Amonni {Hx
A i Shares Shure (Rs.) Lakdis)
1 [Ordinary Shares 25 29554 11644 2,943 51
7 |Class B Shares 23842 116.44 27.50
3 (Chse [ Shases 1,532,170 5.1 Ind60
4 [Class E Shares 2352010 116.91 5 103,07
Tatal 20.38,291 #,440,00

[Explamation. As per the Rules of Vi Compamcs Act, 1956, any material soquisition o dispasal of assers by the Company has to be diselosed and reported in the Notes 1 the Accounts tor & Financial Years subsequent 1o the Year
of e iranssction snd hence, the details provide in Point 37.2 50 377 relates 1o the aequisiion of the Tea Eanles scquited by the Company since 03 formation in Financial Year 2009-10]

The Company hat acquined thase new Tea Estates an 20005 201 5, as detuiled bekew, il siuated in the Distnet of Dageeling, West Bengal from West Benge| Tea Developavent Corporatnn Lud ine luding bot non Bmited w, plan aed
machinery not constiniiag immmevakle property, st other tangible movable assels on Tender Praposal and vahed by the approved valuet

EI;‘ ™ame af the Tea Fetuge £ Addreess Valur
Pamilan Tes Fatane,
) (PO, Udsy Grare Desn Drajeeling 734 [Ra 1076 Lakhs
;;qu Tia Estate.
B) [ 00, oo, Dist Dajecting, 1410z [R5 H17 Lakhe
[ Cedar T'ea Evlale,

cl

P10 Soada, Dkt Daclecling, 74208 |1 788 Lakks

The Company has acquimed rwo new Tea Estues during the Ginancul vear 200 5-1h, ax detabed bebow, abl situnted m the State of Agsam The General Fibers Dwakers Pyt Lid. And Ratanpor Tea Estates Pvt. Lid. respectively
mchuding hul mot limmed o, plant and machinery wl constituting immovable property, and ofbr tangshle movahle assets valued by the approved vabier

i}n Name of ihe Tea Estate & Address Value
{herudeo Purbal Tea Bstate, Dist
L A Rs. 4500 Lakhz
B (Ratanpur Tea Estite, Dist Sibsagar. | oo
Ansarm

(=
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE VEAR ENDED 3ist MARCH,. 2020

W Valae of 1ny

[ & Ia!
Expenditnre in Foreigs Cariemcy
As on Ason
Fartcalars Sied2ezd | 31032009
Amount Amount
1
Aot e (R i Lakhy) | (Rs. in Lakhs)
llg-:::fmrk'n Fecs and Sustanatiley Repord 2514 3110
TravellingMoard Mociing Expenscs 1209 322
Trorelase OF Stores .32 15 14
Parchase O Plan & Machineny |CIF Value) - 4121
hembership Feet - Q.57
[Sakes Prosiatian Fspenses - -
J'tnd'u:ﬂ'-m:d_!:"t_ﬂ - 21 62
Inizrest on ECH 436.%0 15381
Talal 473,50 32107
As on Ax on
i mranehy s | 3iesae
Amoent Amouni
i Head
Aeeom (Rs. In Lakis) | (R In Lakhs}
[Codiectbon From Fxport Sules 144,30 357
Trade Advance 1,859 34 =
ECR Lown (Net Of Brokerage) 174308 780731
Talal A4, T4T 2D THRIDLTE
cileulaied nm
Fasiical Axan AR ob
31,83, 1028 J103. 2019
Lol Ajinagnt
Ageit Sk (R i Lakhe) | (Re. in Lakhs)
Componeni & Spurc Parls 0.32 15.14
Capital Goods E 4221
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(1) Defined conribution plans: {Rs. In Lakhs)
2019-20 201819
Contribation io delined contribution plan, recopnised 33 expense for the year as onder:
i) Fmplover's confribution fo Government Provident Funad G855 SHT HR
Toaal GiH_55 SHT.RR
{k)  Defined benefit plan:
Gratuity
The Emplsvec's Giratiity Fand Scheme. which is defined henefi plan, (s myanaged by Trist mainiained wirh Life Insurance Corparation of India for 3 Gardens, The liahihitics with respect fn Gratuity Pan are determined by
sctuarial valnaten nn projected unit eredit method on the halance theet date, hased upon which the Coampany cintrihuies 1o the Groap Granin Scheme. The difference. if any, beween the actuarind valuation of the grafuity of
enployees # the vear eod and the halance of fonds with ' Lifc Insarance Corparation of Indim, i provided for as assetd dhabafity ) i the books . Actuarial gaine’ (boetes) for defined bencfit plans arc recngrmed m full and are
immedintely taken 1o the statement of profit and less and Other Comprehensive Income accordingly 23 per Actuarial Valuation Report. The Grannmy Plan provides a lump sem payment to vested employess o reriremant. déath,
incapacitatian or termination of employment, of an amount a5 per Gty Acl Viesting occors upon comipletion of five continuous years of service in sccondamce with Indian aw
s In Lakhy)
L Following iformation are hased on report of scivary Tor enployvee benelil cupenscs Ciratuity {Funadodi
2019-240 201810
(A} Change m presem value of the oblgaton duving the yeo
(1 Present value of obligation st year beginning 240429 1053 M
12} Currenl service cost 18744 13200
{3y Patl scrvice cost . .
{41 Intersst cost 1#7.44 15514
(3} Pcoelits pawd i =
(63 Aciuarisl (gam) /! loss arising fmm changes in demographic sxsamptions - :
(7 Achmral (gam) / Joss arkving from changes i finaicial ssumptions 13980 F1
By Actuarial (gain) / loss ansing from changes in expencnce adjustments 192.21 5343
(9} Present value of obligation st year end JMLIT 2.434.29
By Change i Fair valee of plan seects during the year
{1y Fair valae of plan amsets at year boginning = -
12} Imierest moome on plan aesets -
(3% Expecied return on plan ssseiz other than mierest income -
(4 Conbribution made by e Employves - =
5y Benefis paid = =
(ff  Fair value of plan amictd ot year end - =
(T} Reconciliatson of obigaton and faer vabse of asscls
iy Prescnt valoe ol the obligathon it year ¢l P 319 TAM 2
{2} Fnir valoe of plan asgeiz ol vear end P .‘f,;:f\\ =
{3) Fonded status [surphes / {deficin)] gy bl 7434 29

" 341,19
(Ef’f ;__'.“n]l b
= M
\&
\.

(‘e
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DARJEELING ORGANIC TEA ESTATES PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR TITE YEAR ENDED 315t MARCIL, 2020

(I Expense recognisee i ihe Statemenl of Profil ssd Loss

iy
i1
ET)

Currend sorvice ool

Indensst comt

Inierest income on plan asscts

Met conl recognised in Profif or Loss

iE) Hecognised m Other Comprelensive Income

in
i
LE1)
i

Frpected refurn on plan assels other than inierest income

Actuarial {gxing ! loss arimg Oom changes in demographic sssumplions
Actaarial (gain) / st arising from changes in fenancial assempiions
Aetarind igmm ) ¢ ey arismg from clanges in evporonce sdjuistments
Met (gain) loss recognived in Other Comprehensive Income

(Fi et Defined bepetit Habdlity{ Asset) Reconciharkn

i
i
i1
(1]

Mat Defined bencii lahility/] Assct) at the beginning of the year
Defined benefit cost included in P/

Total semcasurcmont included in D)

Emplavers coniribution

Net Defincd benefit Habilioy{Assel) ol rhe ead of the yvoar

L Muarwriny profile of defined bemelin obligstiovns:

Year 1
Year 2
Year 2
Yiar 4
Yedr 5
Year &
Year 7
Year B
Year 9
Yiear 10

Abowe 10 year

Totul expected paymemis

The weighied average duration of the defined benelit plan obligation al the end of the reporting period & 6730 Years

{31l March, 2009, 63 39 year).

The et extimate contribution fior the company during the next year would be By 119666 Lakhs

13151 Marche 2019 Rae. 93625 Lakhs)

Amannl pavable upon discontinuance of all employment is Bs. 3436.67 Lakhs

(3 1ai March, 2019 Rs. 2605 4% Lakhs),

(‘e

INT.44 13201
8744 15814
JT484 2911 |4
139.50 9%
3uLI f3.43
s3Lu2 3041
14340 205174
JTARR 290,14
3142 G4l
3,341,019 243429
0920 i B-19
Te9.2K X8
168,64 154.73
210 TH 1978
197713 21067
13807 21012
35544 19843
28097 235 10
300,01 154,20
33453 i35
10758 151.99
14,591,04 192833
1E.D65.04 436521
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NOTES T0 THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 1620

41 Disclovures ux reguired by ind AS 108, Operatine Seements

(o) Ieemfification of Operafing Segments
The Company Opoisted i a Single Reportable Oporating Scgment .6, Culiivation, manufacture and salz of Tea
Mo oiher operaling seginenlt have beca aggregaled 10 fomm the ahove reportshie operating segments as per the criteria specifivd i the Ind A5,

R In Lakhs
Liardeny Tradimg Chhers Tatal
Sales TEOT. 34,007 334511089 - 1.08.55.45.99]
Other Mg 1634, 764 - £3.720 17, 18,454
T 28,09 b6 A3 AR 1R 43,718 109,72 64474

Purchase 4033310 14,885,953 830 ¥ 24,59.27,149
Changes in Inveniongs of Fanshed Cinods (R 19606441 19,16.42.930 - 1096, 73,256
& Smores & Spares

Employes Benefits Expense TRIR 01569 - - THIH 10,560
Finance Cods 24.9580,31| = - 14,95 80,321
Depreciation 16, 18.37,.312 - - b 1 8,37.312
Impatrment Laoss = = 2935074074 173,50, 74074
CHiher Pipcnisics 70,04,86.274 - 1t 06 (12 57 1,844,274, 4% 801
Tiitad ﬂypﬂm l.‘-’m’ﬂ 34,06 16760 ul.!i.'-"wi 613,83 53503

s, s, 9 (5825670} 14,36.35,92,M1) i5,04,10.58,118)

{by  Bmsiness Sepmeatl wine revenss/resuli/assetsTiabifithes
Stnoe there (5 Single Repomahbe Operating Scgment that & Agnculure Product disclosuse of Openaing Segment wise Assets, Labilibes, Revenue and Reailts are nof applcable, except what o neparied above

1) Coeapraphical Infermatios
The Compankes Revenue i gencrated in the Geagraphical Region of Indian termitory except for o manginal exporn sale amoantang to Rx 29845 Lakhy for the Corrent Year {1 Y - 14,18 Lakba) which has laken place i the Regusn of
Furope. Farihor the Avscts aie slio lscated in India, hence Gengeaphicsl Szgment wise AxseteLnbility Revenoe & Fesults are nof applicable,

i Revenuo from five cusiomers is Re 1079684 Lakhs (P.Y. Ra. 17.343.20 Lakhs) which i more ihan 10% of the total revensic ol the Comparry

[
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED Jlst MARCH, 2620

i1 {A)  Relsred parties and their relationship with the Company =

i1 Koy Mansgement Personmel of the Company, My, Sanjay Prakach Bangal « Director
Mrs, Heens fansal — Derector
Mr VinHhik Baissal = Divech
Ms. Babul Chandra Prakash= Dircctor
i, Michacl Joscph Swoeney = Divcio
My, Weldon Roben Scofl =Direcho
Mr. Anil Bunsal - Director
M Hembert Biemond = Dhrécior
M. Vikram Kapur- (CF0 and U5 = Losncd on 00,02 200% Regyned on 13062016
Mz Urvi Kanodia- C5 - Joned oo 16062019 Resigned on 21 02 2020
Mr, Bajan Sighs CS+ Jained an 10,08 2020

i) Sharcholder Holding move than 20% of Equity Shares of Slichling Pensioentonds ABP
e Cmpany:
i} Enterpeises over which key manigeament persanned are sk Ambootin Ted Exports Privale Limated
hﬁ.l!l.‘l:\i'ﬂ:"l.w}rfﬂ;-\l infleence with whom there weie R’I‘III:IIT.I. Provate | nmted
ransactions during the vear Bl Ten Compony Private Limsled
Bush Tea Company Private Limited
Dageeling Beverages Privide 1inited

Drrcaing ieww Coammodeal Privade Limited
Motelal Makhantal Toldmg Provaie Limsied
Ratanpur Land & Tea Esties Private Limited
Sumpad Vikas Limied

Sevake Tower Privale Limited

Maturul 1lydro & Industrisl Cooperatrve Socicty
Pagbat | By & Industiial Cooperative Soaicty

By Diwchesure of (rescactions with Belated Partics

Nature of ransactone Rel. to Nole (A) above

Eemuancraion {Ra. In Lakhs)

2019-20 20018-19
kv, Samgay Prakach Bansal - Drecior i J34.5) 231012
Wri. Ree Banssl - Director [ia) TRU8 -
Kr Andl Hansal — Direcion ihi} .15 2928
Wi Hritluk Banaal - Dhrecloe i a4, 46 4941
M. Vikram Kapur [vh T.70 Eix
Mis Urvi Kanodis (vl - b .

55127 YIE 41

The Company s provided for Rs. 102,25 Lakhs to Mr Sanjoy Fral e Salary Enfitlement snd R, 43, 10 Lakg fo Mg ened Lesve salary eniitlemen, for the

previons years

(e
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ROTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED Jist MARCH, 1020

(e

Drireglor Fogs. (Hs. In Lakhsp
201920 FTE=19
Me. Sanny Prakash Bangal - Direciog i 1008 1000
‘Mg Reena Ransal — Dhirector (i) 150 -
e Hrithik Bangal = Divector (i} 1333 =
1581 110 T
Charman foos (Pta. Im Lakhs}
1a19-20 2ihR-10
Me Sangay Prakash Bansal - Director 0} 2000 il
2000 20460
Brofissional Fécs Hs, In Lakbsj
2014920 201R-19
M Remiben Nicmond — Director (4 35,50 26T
3520 2R Al
Sales M In Lakhs)
I619-24 FOIE-1%
Bech Tea Company Prvate Limiled i - 40877
Rbuwa Tea Company Private Limited (i} 8.3 .15
Ratarpur Lamd & Tea Fatatcs Private Limiled (it 75253 -
Rbgrmva Provate Linbed (L] aA0%8.01 -
Aot Tea Exports Frivae Limined v 120,58 .
1083845 4,101 R
Purghasics {Hs Tn Lakhs)
Jai9-20 2018-19
Bhemya Tea Company Privare Limied 94,13 Bl 71
Raavpur Land & Tea Estates Private Lomed 1.767.86 -
Anbootia Tea Bxports Private Limited 15.77 -
TATT. 06 BT

: um_

‘e

jom
nlhat;}i
= 3
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE VEAR ENDED 3st MARCH, 2020

Rem (R In Lakhs)
2019-20 H00R-1%
My, Sanpry Frakash Bansal (i T3 126632
M Recns Bansal (i) 1160 349 dls
Aauboobin Tea Exports Provale Linmiled [[T1] 45,0 -
14373 16622
P jore (oo Dol Pl Asseis (s In Lakhy
2019-10 2018-19
Blwmaa Prvale Libed (1 S.085.Th .
Rush Tea Company Private Lumied {ii) (TR -
Darjecling Beverapes Privide Limbned (i TEAT -
Dacamvicw Commodeal Private Limidcd (iv) 1.636.73 -
Motural Hydro & Industrial Co-operative Sociery iv) 052 -
Parkan Hydre & Industrinl Co-ppermtive Sogscty {¥i) 189,76 -
HB55. 00 -

Bemuneration of kv mansgerment perspnnel . The remmeration of key management porsonnel of the Company arc sel out below in aggregude for each of the categories specified i Ind A% 24 Related purty dischsores.

(Hs In Lakhs)
2019-20 0[8-19
Salaries & Woges (i £40.M g R
Canribution 1o Provident & Othey Funds * i) 20,55 16.50
851,27 31840

*Dioes nod mclode granuiny as i 15 provided in the books of aceounts an the basis of acwanal valuation for the company as o whole and hence mdividual smomnl cannon be detérmined

The tunsscissns sth related paries are nct of trces & relnihirsement of expences and have been made on lerms equivalent 10 those thar prevail in arm's length iranmciiang. This asesxment is undertaken cach fimancinl yesr
Urough cxmmining the fmanonl positon of the rclated pamy gnd fe market in which e related porty operales.
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ANIC TEA PRIVATE 1.1 1]

M]TE_?TI:I THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED J1st MARCH, 2020

(C)  Balanced ue 31 year end are s out beinwy

Uthes Conicnt Lisbiliticy {Hs, In Lakhy)
01920 00819
Sanjay Prakash Hansal L 1Les 271
Feona Bangal iy 1125 460
Hrithik Fangal (i .97 (FX
Anil Plansal (v} 458 47
Wikrmm Kapus vl - [
R ] 25193
Trmde Pavalse (R I Labhsy
2019-24 2HE-19
Sevoke Towers Privale Limied i 103,56 10354
Rembert Biemaond AR i - o i
[T | K
sihairt Term Bocowings (R, Tn Lakhs)
200%-10 SO1R-1%
Sangay Prbash Bansal {1} 98.50 -
Mool Makhanial Holding Privase Limited (i} f.99 T
Sampad Vikas Limiked i1ii1 ERC LR
10548 (IR}
Trade Recgivabls {ngt of proviikns) (Rs. Tn Lakhs
T019.20 JajR-19
Ambaatia Tea Exports Private Lindlted i) 126,61 .
Bharmy Privale Limiied {m) - .
Bl Tea Company Prvate Limied (i) - Las9. 77
12661 165977

e
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3 st MARCH, 2020

il Mony Cigvent 4 sietd (el of provigiod) (R4, In Dakhs)
2018.10 1819
Hhumya T'ea Company Frivate | amibed 1] 8161 BO.64
Dispecling Bevernges Privale Timiled {ii} - 3.0
Drreamvicw Commeodeal Private Lamided {mi) - 163673
Manaral | bydeo & Indusinial Cooperaive Sogiely vy - a2
Parhat Hydno £ Indiestrial Co-aperative Socicty v - 1849 76
16863 1,01 1.03
Lither Corrent Asscty (Re th Lakhs)
2oie-10 HIlE-19
Ambools Tea Exports Provate F ol {i} RLIR {335
Fatanpur Lopd & Tea Estaics Private Lunited {nh 16546 SE R
LG4 S5

43 Non-cancellable leaces

The Campany hat snered inko aon-canceiiable (4 lesse agrecmionin for Fourteen len culnles situated i the states ol West Beéngal lor a period rll..mgbﬂwm 1902 50 years wilh oplien (or renewal an nutually agrecd oo sl &
ea-manklaciuring lactory. The Lense Henl s charged i the Siement of Profil and Loss and Nldure kase commlmanls e

(R In Lakbn)

0020 Z01R=1"
Commitmenis far mintmem kase payvments in reladion lo noo-cancellably leases as folblows.
Within ane vear 598 678
| ater than one }mr.l:ﬂ! ol Ikt than five veard MLER 3391
Later thun frioe vewrs Mol Ascerisinable Mot Ascerminahle

44 Fair Value Measuremeni
The fan vahoe of the finoncisl pesets and Habilities are inclided o e ammont at which the mstroment could be exchanged i coment transscton betwesn willing paries other than in & forved o igmdeton ssle

The fiolboweny methods mwd ssnmmplions were usexd o estmale e fair valoes

(1) Fapr vabse of cach end cash équivalence, tride and other short ferm recenables. tnade payahbles | ofher current lishilities, $hoo-lerm boans from banks and other financinl nsiulions spproximale their carnymg amountt largely
dise to the short ierm marurifies of these mstumenis.

L.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE VEAR ENDED Jist MARCH, 2020

b} Deseriprinn of cipnificant unabservahls inputs o valustion:

Financial Assev/ Liability Valuation Technique  Significunt onobservable input
Trade Receivables ECiL Kealation pattern of pasl experence
Lamns DXCF using EIR method Dexount mis
Dihier Financial asscls cxclodme dermoalive financial mstramicnsts DCF vsing EIR method  Disoouni raic
Poerowimgs from banks and linancul msdiulen DCF using EIR method [Msoount rake

45 Fimaticial Risk Manspement Ohjective and Poliekes:
Tl Crmpany s activitics expiose it to market risk, Bty nsk and credis disk. In order 1o minimise any adverse effiects on the Tinanc il performance of e Company, the company has ik memagemen: pobieies os deseribed
belonw =
[=) Market Risk

Markel nsk w5 the rik that the tae velee of Intare cush ows of » linancal wstrument will (hiclubc bocase of changes n marke prces. Marke nsk comprses three tvpes of sk werest mte nsk, curreney ek and commuodiry
price wisk. Finpngal mmsiromensis affociod by markel nsk sclade  fonsign cummenoy recemvatiles, payabies, loans sod bormwings,

The Company menages markes tick through o rensury depamment, which evanates and exercises independent contral ovier the entine progess of mudker tisk moansgoment. The sctraties of this déportment inelode mansgement of
cath resources implementing horrowing srstegies and casuning compliance with marker rizk limits and policies.

1 Imseresi rabe risk:

Invicrest rates risk b the rish that the Fabr vakoe o future cadh fows of & financial instrument wall Nuctuate becaude of changes in market intereil rates The Company”'s main itered dabe ik ardes from chor mn sl haig-gm
HBompwmps with waneble mics, which exposc the company to cash flow miferce mibc ok Dinng 31t March 2009 and 3 16t 8arch 2018 the compan’s bomowmgs ai varable e woe denonvinated o INE

Tnterest raic senwitiviny

The fllowing table demonstrates the sensiivily (o a reasonnbly possible change in mterest mics on the bas ond boreowings. With all oiter vonables held constant. the Company s profi before tax 1 sffected through the
mmpact o Moating rase bormwings, as folkaws:

101920 01E-1%

(4 =3 50 Bagls Painre [+ <1 50 Bagis Pointe

Eifect on profit before tax doe (o infencst rale sensitivity (Re. In Lakhs) 98 58

(=




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315t MARCH, 2020

(i) Forzign Carrency Risk

Forcign curreney risk is the risk that the fair value or fuiore cash (lows of an expodire will Mocmate becanse of changes in foreign exchange rales The Canipany’s expasare i the risk of changes in frelgn exchenge rated relies
primarily 1o the Company’s apcrating and financing actvities, As on March 31, 2019, the Company have Fareign currency exposune, which o unbedged  and hence exposed 16 rick. which depends apon market variahility in fataee
which cannol be prodicted as of mow

Gl Price Rk

Factors thul ean affect prices include politics) nod regilatory changes. scawoiml varmbismg, weather, lechnalogy and market conditione.

(k) Crediy Risk

Creadit risk sefiers to the risk of default ou its obligation by the conterparmy redulting @ a fhancial loxe The Company (€ cupeded b eredit riek from it operating activities (prirmatil Trade Receivables) Trade recefvabled s
rvpcally mmeceured and arc denved from revenue carned from cugtomers. Castomer cnedit ek is manaped by cach busmess wnit subject to the Company's pahicy and procedursed which imolve credin approvals. sstablishing cradin
Timits and contmnsly monitoring the credin worhiness of customers 10 which the Company granis credin ierms m the normal course of huesines. Ouistanding customer recelvables are reglarhy mosiiored. Credit risk fiom halances
with banks, torm deposits. loans. & managed by Company's finence depanment Investments of surplus fonds are made only with spproved counterpartics and within credit imite assigned to cach counteeparty, The limits are sef to
mirimise the concentration of riaks and therefore miigate fnancisl less nugh connterpary s fotential fadure 16 maike payments, The Uampany monfors miings. crodif fpreads and Ninascial streagth ol s sosntéipamcs. The
COmpiny s WM mim exposure to credil fisk for the componests of the Balance Shect as of 3151 March. 2019 & 315t March. 2018 & the cammving Amounts

(i Timde Bocciables
Costomes crecht ok is mapaged by sach business vnel subject ko the Companmy s established policy. procedures and control relating to costomer credi risk management, Cutsitanding customer recevalles are regubarby meonitored. An
impairmeni mnabies is perfocmed of cech reporting date on an individusl e for major clients

The Company evahiales the cancenirating o mak with nespect to irde recenables as low, 88 i cidmmers are ncated in seviers] junsdictions and operate w largely idependent markets
Drusring the Yéar 20091, comapny’s 9% of the botal revense from openiimons s from Bhuns Proote Landicd. rcalisabiliny of which & doubifial to the extent of more than 50%, The company has miade 8 proviissn agausl sich

doubtiul receivabics
The ageng anahs of the fecenabilies (gross ol groviEwns ) have been coainbered from the date of the umvoice Bl duc

[ i sk

As al Azl
Hini Mlarch, 2070 315 March, 2029

L tham é mionitha 313328 441 04
Mo than & Mowths 4,711 80 143493
Tatal W 488707
ik 1 4 mnd Ladh and hank halances
Crelit ik From balsisdes wilh bondos mind Frnansciad soslilulsem o maneged by the O "s brensury departricsd in aocordance with the Company®s polocy. Crodid Lol of all anthonibes oo reviwed by the Management on regudar

bawie Al halsnces with banks and fmancal mitutions i sobgect 1 low credit rick due 1o good credil rtings sssigned (0 thess entitics

£
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315t MARCH, 2000

i€

Linguidity risk i the risk ihat the Company may not be able 1o meel its present and ftare cash and collateral oliligaions without incwming unacceptable bosses. The Company's abjoctive 1o, sl all times mambam aptimun levels af

ligmsdity 1o meet b cash 2od coll@eral reguirements. The Company clisel moniions its liguidity position and maintaine adeguate sources of financing

Thie tshle below sumpnarses the mawriny profile of the Compamy s financial linbilites based on conirsciual paymenis

{Hs in Lakhks)
Less than | yenr 1 10 5 years > 5 years Total
Sla March, 2028
Horrowmgs
Termy Loans from Hanks 4 59407 4,937 72 G530 89
Yehicle Losns 1% 173 - 1254
Cadh credit from Panks (Renewable svery year) 671524 - - 6, 71534
ECB - 2604 0% IDALE Y 1302500
(hihers JLIEE - - 108 48
Cuher Finane ial Liabaddics other (han comenl imaturifics of bomowings and lease obligaion b 4T - BinAT
FLIE I TEJNA% 104159 HI5T.6T
—_— =

(4} Onaccount of pandomic due fo COVID 19, the Company”s opcrsbions wore lemporanty disrupted acroes all colsies = Asxeny and West Boagal, varchomse, supply cliain and fionl cnd opeiafions in linc wilh Govemmen! s

dirzetves, The Company have since resoemed operaiiors, s per gasdeiines imd novms presenibed by the Ciovermmeni suihorities

Thie Company based on the mssessment mades believes mmpact of ihe pandenic on eperationg would be o temporany sod sver @ shont term perod. The impact of covid o the businesy has becn dome excepl T The kass of
presution due 1o fockdan The vovhl does not have any shnifican impazt on sales. Compainy's sales this yesr 1o the evisting costormers and fhe new costamerns eve been steady, Global and domcsis: demand for indiun le
Tins Tirrmed p g due to lower production cven the prices have lirmed up this vear s well, Overall, tes industry and the company has goecn positive revenss impact The ten industry and the company as well, however haw
higher cast of prmdiction b ihis vear duss o the ks ol production during the kekdown perind { 24th March in 14ih April ) and alse beemme during the pericd the comapny bad to pay $0% wages (o the werkers in spils of o

work being done. The increrded price realisation however engbles the indirsmy and the company 1o recover the cost i some oxtent

Lon seenits with 1000 hank became NPA sn Junc 2019 snd consequent To this, the company’ had snitisted docussson wlh the bank smee Dee 2019 for restroetnmg  seitlenent of the ourstanding bsan and the bank had
affercd & One Time Settfement (OT5) Propesal fo the company vide belfer dated 281h May 20000 Whilst the discustiney were still i progresd, he compairy has received o copy of o perition filed undes section 7 of the
Insolvency and Bankropicy Code, 2016, from LICO Bank on 30.04.2020. The Company has again submitted the restrocturing propoxal in the bank on 28 10,3024 and confinues o be m dmouscmn witli the hask for fhe
approval of the sabd restructuring propesal The restructuring proposal of the Company is Rl backed by the foreign fnvestors and the Company is confident of resoiving all izswes wiih the bank, before the admizcin of the

MCLT petition. I view of the above the managemient of the company' s confident of the compamy remaining as a going conccm.
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DARJEELING ORGANIC TEA ESTATES PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES T0 THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED J1st MARCH, 2020

46 Caplial Mansrement:

For the purpose of the Uompany § capiial management, equty inclodc oismed equity capitnl, securstics premam and sl adher gty rescrves sitfibatable to the equity share holders, including capatal rexcrve snd et debt mcludes
inberext beanng foans snd borrowings excepl cash and cash equnalkents. The pramany objeciive of the Compaiiy s capilal mansgement 2 1o saleguard continuity, mamlain 3 g cocdil rabog aod healthy caputal ratos o onder to

A

(i)

(i)

mppor its business snud provide sdequiatc retarm o sharcholders shrough commamg growih

The Company masages 05 capital structure and makes sdjusements in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirenients of the financlsl coveaants. The funding requirement i met thiough & mivtare of egaity, inlemal
aceruald, bong termn bortowings and shoet e bomtowings The Company monilon capitil iding & geanng eali, Wiich i oot debl dovaled by totsl capital plas st debl.
T deder i achieve this svornll ohijective, the Company 's capial management. amongs! othier things. aims o cnsure that i meets lnancial covenants attsched W the inkeeesi-bearing Joany and homoowings that define capial dneciue

requiremenis.

B ags
Less: Current invesiments
Less; Cash and cash equivalents

fa} Mot Dhohd

() Exguity
{c) Equity and Net Teht (a+h)

Lenring Ratin (a'c)

Dividend

Faulty Shaies
Final dividend

Compulsry Curverlible Preference Shares
Comalaine Dividend Accrued

Dividends sof recegaised at the end of the reparting period

Hu, in Lakls
Aswi Mgl
Slmn March, 2020 3wt March, 3019
2T A66 Pl e
115,76 LR
7.0 Y, 55
1ATT 140
.2 100825
0.9 n.20

P Ay \\

;,"' -:L"‘ ol

ﬂ"" KOL-16 -j—_‘.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED Jist MARCIL I830

47 Exrning per share {EPS§:

n
(2}
(i
=]
i

iy
fal
]
Lel
i

Baik

Fave valie of cquity sharcs

Profis suribuzabhs to cauity sharcholders

Weighted weerage numibee of equiry shares owpstanding
Weighted sverage carmog por sbare (hasic and dilited)

Thidsited

Face valuc of equiy shascs

Profis sunbwrable o eguity sharchalders

Weighted averapge nuniber of eqiiny shares sursanding
‘Weighicd sverage carmang per share {hasa: and daluied

4% Assgis Pledeed a9 Sccurin
The carrying smubnd of Assels pledged as security for Current and ton cirrenl bodtremgs ae «

Current

Tiade Rovehvahbles
Invemories

Hiclogical Assets
Todal Carrent Assers Pledged ax Socuriry

Mo Current

Propecry Plam & Fgupmonts
Total Man Cisrrent Asscis Plodged as Secutine

Tutal Axscts Pledged as securiies

4% Previous year figines are regrouped [ icammangod whereved contidered necessary

(=

201920 2018-19
1000 16
(3.81.39.75,131) la 1000031
JIRSARAT ifr R E T
(1 180) 490
10040 10 00
(380.39.75,13) I 03 1
32853847 32053847
(1108 ot

Ri. in Lakhs )
A st Al
31wt Mureh, 1030 Fim March, 2019

27119 4 ARTTT
14691 64 5,788,358
1065.0) ROTE 44
104,365
| (M, 565
i1 .'l-iﬂl-ll




